Cabinet
Meeting: Wednesday, 21st June 2017 at 6.00 pm in Civic Suite, North
Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP
Membership:

Contact:

Cllrs. James (Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Regeneration and Economy) (Chair), Watkins (Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods), Noakes
(Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure), D. Norman (Cabinet
Member for Performance and Resources), Organ (Cabinet Member
for Housing and Planning) and Cook (Cabinet Member for
Environment)
Atika Tarajiya
Democratic Services Officer
01452 396127
atika.tarajiya@gloucester.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or nonpecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please
see Agenda Notes.

3.

MINUTES (Pages 7 - 16)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 2017, 27 April
2017 and 17 May 2017.

4.

EXEMPT MINUTES (Pages 17 - 24)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Council Meeting on 27th April 2017 (Part 2:
Exempt minutes) and 17 May 2017 (Part 2: Exempt minutes).
PLEASE NOTE: This item contains exempt material as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). If Members wish to
discuss material contained within this item it will be necessary to notify the Chair to
enable a resolution to be passed to exclude the press and public.

5.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
The opportunity is given to members of the public to put questions to Cabinet Members or
Committee Chairs provided that a question does not relate to:

1




6.

Matters which are the subject of current or pending legal proceedings, or
Matters relating to employees or former employees of the Council or comments in respect
of individual Council Officers

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)
To receive any petitions or deputations provided that no such petition or deputation is in
relation to:



7.

Matters relating to individual Council Officers, or
Matters relating to current or pending legal proceedings

LEADER AND CABINET MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
Any Member of the Council may ask the Leader of the Council or any Cabinet Member any
question without prior notice, upon:




Any matter relating to the Council’s administration
Any matter relating to any report of the Cabinet appearing on the summons
A matter coming within their portfolio of responsibilities

Only one supplementary question is allowed per question.

8.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT STRATEGY (Pages 25 - 42)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy and Cabinet
Member for Performance and Resources outlining a strategy to enable further investment in
property assets.

9.

GLOUCESTER MUSEUMS MEMBERSHIP (Pages 43 - 48)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure seeking agreement for
amendments to the Gloucester City Museums Pass tariffs and member benefits.

10.

VOLUNTARY SECTOR AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUNDING AND
ACTIVITIES FOR 2017/18 (Pages 49 - 56)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods outlining
the council’s proposed approach for the use of the Voluntary and Community Sector grants
and activities budget in the financial year to March 2018.

11.

REGENERATION AT KINGS QUARTER (Pages 57 - 60)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy noting the
progress made for the new Kings Quarter regeneration proposals.

12.

RAILWAY STATION GROWTH DEAL 3 APPLICATION REVIEW (Pages 61 - 66)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy concerning the
bid for Growth Deal 3 Funding to secure improvements at Gloucester Railway Station and its
environs.

13.

POLICY OPTIONS TO IMPROVE THE CONDITIONS OF PRIVATELY RENTED
PROPERTIES (Pages 67 - 72)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning considering
the introduction a Selective Licensing Scheme for landlords in parts of the City where
the quality of private rented accommodation falls below an acceptable level.

2

14.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE - ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 (Pages 73 80)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources providing an
overview of the Councils performance for 2016/17, review of annual treasury management
activities and the actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2016/17.

15.

FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2016/17 (Pages 81 - 96)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources inform
Members of the final Council position against agreed budgets for the 2016/17 financial year,
including a summary of how the Council has progressed against key savings targets for the
year.

16.

ACCOMMODATION REVIEW (Pages 97 - 102)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources outlining
options to meet the future accommodation needs of the City Council and to recommend
negotiations with Gloucestershire County Council to relocate the organisation to Shire Hall to
facilitate the potential disposal for the HKP Warehouses.

Jon McGinty
Managing Director
Date of Publication: Tuesday, 13 June 2017

3

NOTES
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.
Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows –
Interest

Prescribed description

Employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest)
and the Council
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are
to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area.
For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the
land or to receive income.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the
Council’s area for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) –
(a) the landlord is the Council; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner
or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has
a beneficial interest

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where –
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land
in the Council’s area and
(b) either –
i. The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that
body; or
ii. If the share capital of that body is of more than one class,
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with

4

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.
For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or
civil partner where you are aware of their interest.
Access to Information
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website:
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting
date.
For further details and enquiries about this meeting please contact Atika Tarajiya, 01452
396125, atika.tarajiya@gloucester.gov.uk.
For general enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk.
If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this
information, or if you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information
please call 01452 396396.
Recording of meetings
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy,
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors,
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in
advance of the meeting.
FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings;
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the
assembly point in the car park and await further instructions;
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is
safe to do so.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

CABINET
MEETING

:

Wednesday, 8th March 2017

PRESENT

:

Cllrs. Watkins, Organ, Noakes, D. Norman and Cook
Others in Attendance
Jon McGinty, Managing Director
Jonathan Lund, Corporate Director
Anne Brinkhoff, Corporate Director
Jon Topping, Head of Finance
Shirin Wotherspoon, Solicitor
Atika Tarajiya, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer

APOLOGIES

81.

:

Cllr. James

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

82.

MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 8th February 2017 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

83.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
There were no public questions.

84.

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)
There were no petitions or deputations.

85.

LEADER AND CABINET MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
There were no questions from Members to the Cabinet.

86.

CITY CENTRE ACTION PLAN -ANNUAL REVIEW

Page 7

CABINET
08.03.17
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and
Economy which provided Members with an annual update of progress with delivery
of the City Centre Action Plan.
The Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods (Councillor Watkins)
explained that careful management was required to strengthen the attractiveness
and viability of the City Centre, particularly in light on recent trends within retail and
the growing presence of online shopping. She reported that the City Centre Action
Plan would be refreshed maximising the impact of the Together Gloucester
organisational redesign and become aligned with proposals for the Gloucester
Business Improvement District (BID) following the results of the ballot in June 2017.
She welcomed the progress made as a result of the Street Aware Policy and the
work undertaken by the Gloucester Street Aware partnership.
Councillor Noakes expressed support for the proposals noting a minor
typographical error on page 31 of the report, commenting that it was the 2017
Annual Gloucester Visitor Guide due for publication. She reported that the timetable
for publication was being reconsidered to ensure that it coincided with the tourism
season.

RESOLVED: That progress with delivery of the City Centre Action Plan as set out
in the report, be noted.
87.

CITY CENTRE INVESTMENT FUND ALLOCATIONS AND UPDATE
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and
Economy which provided an update on the City Centre Investment Fund (CCIF)
delivery programme and which sought approval to allocate additional funding to
existing and new projects.
Councillor Watkins reported that approximately £1 million of the proceeds from the
sale of land at St Oswalds Retail Park had been spent on a number of regeneration
projects within the City Centre. She explained that the remainder of the fund had
been committed to additional projects including phase 2 of the City Museum
Improvements.
In response to the query from the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources
(Councillor David Norman) on the wording in paragraph 9.1 of the report, the Head
of Finance confirmed that all the proceeds from the disposal of land had been
committed to future regeneration projects, however the commentary referred to the
element of the proceeds that remained.
Cabinet Members welcomed the ongoing improvements delivered within the City
Centre commenting that they demonstrated excellent progress in improving the
City’s cultural offer and components of the Cultural Strategy 2016-2022.

Page 8

CABINET
08.03.17
88.

CAR PARKING CHARGING REVIEW
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Members for Regeneration and
Economy which sought approval for introduction of a zoning policy, for the car
parking tariff, to enable better use of the City’s off street car parking.
Councillor Watkins summarised key areas of the report, commenting that the
Council had not proposed a change in car parking tariffs since 2012, when a
reduction in charges had been implemented. She explained that the additional
income generated would be utilised in delivering continual improvements to city
centre car parks. She commented that the revised tariffs continued to demonstrate
excellent value for money and remained a cheaper option than on street parking
and many private car parks within the City.
Cabinet Members supported the proposals noting that in particular objections had
been raised on social media to the change Southgate Moorings’ tariffs. They
commented that the increases were reasonable when considering the available
alternatives and the introduction of the zoning policy would provide financial
incentives to individuals willing to travel further distances.
RESOLVED:
1. A zoning system of parking charges be introduced for the city centre off street
car parks
2. Charges for parking all day remain unchanged for all car parks excluding Great
Western Road which will be increased by 20p on all its tariffs.
3. No increase in the tariff for GL1 which will remain at £4 for up to 2.5 hours
(maximum stay)
4. The increases as laid out in the report be applied to the off street car parks:
5. An evening charge of £1.50 be introduced for Southgate Moorings
6. £30,000 of any increase in revenue be allocated for a car parks improvement
fund
7. Authority be delegated to the Head of Regeneration & Economic Development,
in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Regeneration & Economy, to
undertake the appropriate and necessary procedures to amend the current car
parking order(s)
8. A further review be undertaken by the Head of Regeneration and Economic
Development considering the impact of the changes made.

89.

COUNTYWIDE ENTRENCHED HOMELESSNESS SOCIAL IMPACT BOND
Cabinet considered the report of the County Homelessness Coordinator which
made Members aware of new DCLG funding (up to £990,000 over four years) that
had been agreed for an innovative project to work with Gloucestershire’s
Page 9

CABINET
08.03.17
entrenched rough sleepers and repeat homeless individuals; and which
recommended that Gloucester City Council act as Lead Authority and Accountable
Body for the commissioning partnership.
Councillor Watkins reported that response from the Gloucester Faith & Voluntary
Community Sector Homeless Forum had been extremely positive noting that they
had raised concerns on whether appropriate housing provision for these individuals
could be located.
Councillor Organ acknowledged that homelessness was a complex issue that
required careful consideration of individual circumstances and cross collaboration
with partner agencies to ensure a viable solution.
RESOLVED:
1. Gloucester City Council act as Lead Authority and Accountable Body.
2. Authority be delegated to the Corporate Director, in consultation with the S151
officer and Council Solicitor to finalise and enter into all necessary legal
documentation in order to deliver this project.

90.

DEVELOPMENT OF A GREEN TRAVEL POLICY
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Environment (Councillor
Richard Cook) which proposed the introduction of a Green Travel Policy for the
organisation, supported by the introduction of an integrated staff business travel
portal and the procurement of a modern and environmentally efficient fleet of
vehicles.
Councillor Cook highlighted key areas of the report noting that the Independent
Remuneration Panel had been asked to consider whether the scheme could be
incorporated into the Scheme of Members Allowances 2017/18.
Cabinet Members endorsed the proposals noting the efficiencies and savings that
the scheme would generate and placed on record their thanks to officers.
RESOLVED:
1. The draft Green Travel Policy (contained at Appendix 3), and the procurement of
an integrated staff business travel portal and a modern and environmentally
efficient fleet of vehicles be approved;
2. The Independent Remuneration Panel be asked to consider incorporating the
Green Travel Policy into the Scheme of Members’ Allowances 2017-18.
3. The effectiveness of the policy be reviewed after 12 months of it being in
operation.

Page 10

CABINET
08.03.17
91.

FINANCIAL MONITORING QUARTER 3 REPORT
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and
Resources noting note year-end forecasts, and progress made against agreed
savings targets for the 3rd quarter ended 31st December 2016.
Councillor Norman highlighted key areas of the report and explained that the
proposed transfer of £100,000 to the Business Rates Reserve was to protect the
Council against further reduction in central government formula grant.
Cabinet Members acknowledged the challenges within their individual portfolios and
welcomed the implementation of the Together Gloucester Organisational Change
that would result in efficiencies and further savings.
RESOLVED:
1. The savings achieved in year to date total £446k with a further £283k in
progress.
2. The forecast year end position is currently for a reduction to the Council’s
General Fund balance of £109k, an improvement of £23k since Quarter 2.
3. The deficit position includes a proposed transfer to the Business Rates Reserve
of £100k.
4. The details of specific budgetary issues identified by officers and the actions
being taken to address those issues
5. The current level of Capital expenditure as shown on Appendix 2.

Time of commencement: 6.00 pm
Time of conclusion: 6.28 pm
Chair

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

CABINET
MEETING

:

Thursday, 27th April 2017

PRESENT

:

Cllrs. James (Chair), Watkins, Noakes, D. Norman, Organ and Cook
Others in Attendance
Jon McGinty, Managing Director
Jonathan Lund, Corporate Director
Anne Brinkhoff, Corporate Director
Peter Lewis, One Legal
Anthony Hodge, Head of Regeneration and Economic Development
Atika Tarajiya, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer

92.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

93.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the following item of
business on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press and public
are present during consideration of this item there will be disclosure to them of
exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
as amended.

94.

A TREASURY MANAGEMENT MATTER
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and
Resources.
RESOLVED:
Recommendations as laid out in the exempt report.

Page 13

CABINET
27.04.17
Time of commencement: 7.30 pm
Time of conclusion: 7.36 pm
Chair

Page 14
2

CABINET
MEETING

:

Wednesday, 17th May 2017

PRESENT

:

Cllrs. James (Chair), Watkins, Noakes, D. Norman, Organ and Cook
Others in Attendance
Jonathan Lund, Corporate Director
Anne Brinkhoff, Corporate Director
Anthony Hodge, Head of Place
Philip Ardley, Consultant- Asset Management
Jon Topping, Head of Finance
Shirin Wotherspoon, Solicitor
Parvati Diyar, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer

95.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

96.

GLOUCESTER BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PROPOSAL
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy
which provided an update on proposals for a Gloucester Business Improvement
District (BID, to seek agreement to delegate authority to make decisions in respect
of the Council’s obligations under the BID, and to seek confirmation that the City
Council as ‘Billing Authority’ will not veto the proposals under the Business
Improvement Districts (England) Regulations 2014.
Members had been made aware of the proposed Gloucester BID that was a
business-led and business funded programme to improve the City Centre, Docks
and Quays.
The formal launch of Gloucester’s BID was held on Tuesday, 16 May 2017.
The Leader of the Council commented that there had been strong support from the
Council and he hoped for a successful ballot for the BID to be led by businesses.
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning fully supported the BID and hoped
for a positive outcome from businesses.

Page 15

CABINET
17.05.17
The Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods said she was
disappointed she was unable to attend the launch. She believed the BID led by
businesses was the best way forward for Gloucester.
RESOLVED:
1. Authority be delegated to the Head of Place in consultation with the Cabinet
Member for Regeneration and Economy to make decisions in respect of the
Council’s obligations under the Gloucester Business Improvement District
legislative process.
2. Proposals to veto a Gloucester Business Improvement District as set out in the
report, under the Business Improvement Districts (England) Regulations 2004
not be undertaken by the City Council as ‘Billing Authority’.
97.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the following item
of business on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press and public
are present during consideration of this item there will be disclosure to them of
exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
as amended.

98.

REGENERATION AT KINGS WALK SHOPPING CENTRE
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and
Economy outlining the options for the current sale of Kings Walk shopping centre.
RESOLVED:
The recommendation as laid out in the exempt report.

Time of commencement: 6.00 pm
Time of conclusion: 6.30 pm
Chair

Page 16

Agenda Item 4

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

Subject:

Property Investment Strategy

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy and Cabinet
Member for Performance and Resources.

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jon Topping, Head of Finance

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jon.topping@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

21 June 2017

Yes
Tel: 396242

A. Property Investment Strategy & Business Plan
B. Property Investment Board Terms of Reference

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The Council’s latest Medium Term Financial Strategy shows that for the financial
years between 2017 and 2022 the Council is facing a deficit of £2.6m.

1.2

This report outlines a strategy to help address the shortfall in funding, with the
implementation of a strategy to enable further investment in property assets.

1.3

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:

2.2

(1)

The Property Investment Strategy, as set out in this report, be approved.

(2)

The setting up of a Property Investment Board in line with the Terms of
Reference as set out in Appendix B be approved.

(3)

Authority be delegated to the Council Solicitor to negotiate and conclude such
documents deemed necessary or desirable to reflect the heads of terms
negotiated by the S151 Officer and Head of Place to enable the completion of
each acquisition.

Cabinet is asked to RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL that:
(1)

Authority be delegated to the S151 Officer in consultation with the Cabinet
Member for Performance and Resources to:
a) amend the capital programme to create a Property Investment fund of £80m
in order to acquire new investment property;
b) borrow as required to fund investment property purchases; and

Page 25

c)
(2)

Amend the Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators as
necessary to reflect the Council’s borrowing requirement.
Subject to the approval of recommendation 1, the following delegations be
approved to proceed with the acquisition of assets, subject to the acquisitions
meeting the parameters of the Property Investment Strategy:
a) Asset purchases of up to £15m to be approved by the S151 Officer in
consultation with the Property Investment Board.

b)
3.0

Asset purchases in excess of £15m be referred to the Cabinet.
Background and Key Issues
Why should we do this?

3.1

Like all local authorities, the council is facing further cuts to the money it gets from
the government. The council has to make £1.65m of savings in the current financial
year and in the next four financial years we need to save £2.6m from around
£14.2m of net controllable spend - this is in addition to savings in excess of £10m
already made in the last six years.

3.2

The Council’s Money Plan has highlighted the need to deliver these savings as
levels of expected funding from Central Government continue to reduce. The
Council has delivered savings and efficiencies to meet the challenges to date. The
Council is currently undergoing a major transformation programme to meet the
savings targets in 2017-18, however this cannot be repeated in the medium term to
meet the savings requirements whilst still delivering the Council’s business
priorities. The Council’s adopted Money Plan is based on a financial forecast over a
rolling five year timeframe to 2021/22 which helps ensure that resources are aligned
to the outcomes in our Council Plan.

3.3

The draft Council Plan 2017-2020 has four key priorities, of which one is “Working
to provide great services that offer value for money”. As stated above the Council
will not be able to deliver the required savings through efficiencies and
transformation alone, nor is continuous service reduction a realistic option, therefore
we need to look at methods of income generation as an alternative strategy. This
Property Investment Strategy identifies an alternative key source of income that will
potentially deliver a major element of the required savings. The strategy is being
put in place as a key deliverer of income: therefore it must be understood that its
principal purpose is not to drive regeneration in Gloucester, rather as an income
producing fund identifying properties from anywhere in the country that will deliver
the required returns (which can be used to help take forward regeneration and other
council priorities). It must be noted that alternative efficiencies and sources of
income will still need to be identified as part of the Money Plan.

3.4

There are a number of risks and opportunities with a property investment as a
Council strategy, namely:
Market forces - fluctuations in demand and supply of the individual market and the
wider economy will see the value of the investment and the income rise and fall, the
council may not recoup the original amount invested in full. To mitigate this risk,
criteria to diversify for purchase can be adopted and due diligence will be followed
for all transactions;
Page 26

Liquidity - The process of buying and selling property, in relation to some other
forms of investment, is complex and can result in transactional delay and
uncertainty which carries risk from market shift, abortive transactional costs and
inability to realise "sale" capital quickly. This risk can be managed and improved
through good portfolio management. The council will likely need to partner with
external experts to manage a portfolio, as in-house skills are limited and
constrained.

3.5

3.6.

Opportunity - The availability of stock is generally limited; there will be times where
lack of or lost opportunities through negotiation and competition will frustrate the
process. This is often exacerbated by a general lack of transparency and openness
in the market creating barriers to entry. To counter this and to offset the lack of
internal skills, suitably qualified property agents can be employed to seek out as
many appropriate opportunities as possible, build relationships and communicate to
the market the council's requirement and ability to perform.
.
A variety of investment instruments are available to the Local Authority market. In
addition to the notice accounts and fixed term deposits available from UK and
overseas banks, it is possible for the Council to invest in UK Government Gilts,
bonds, property funds, or commercial and residential property.
These instruments require the Council to tie up its funds for a significantly longer
period than currently determined by the adopted Treasury Management Strategy
(reducing liquidity), or would carry a risk of capital loss if markets were to go down.
Therefore, our policy to date has been not to invest in these more risky and less
liquid forms of investment. However, a variety of factors suggest that now may be
an appropriate time to reconsider that approach, including:
a) The perception of increased risk in bank deposits as a result of a reduction in
confidence that the Government would again bail out a failing bank
(b) The outlook for short term bank deposit yields being below inflation
(c) A growing UK economy that could support other forms of investment
(d) A challenging budget that would benefit from additional investment income

3.7

Officers have therefore considered a variety of different forms of investment. UK
Gilts and corporate bond funds could still face a challenging growth environment,
whereas the commercial property market returns in particular stands to benefit from
forecast growth in excess of 2% per annum over the next few years

4.0

Property Market Outlook

4.1

The commercial property market has survived the EU referendum result relatively
well with only modest falls in capital values coming through and a small upturn in
capital values in October suggesting an overall dissipation of the Brexit effect.
Despite the effect on capital values, total returns (capital growth and rental income)
rose by 2.9% in the twelve months to September 2016 suggesting sector stability
and resilience in difficult times.

Page 27

4.2

The table below shows the current yields for specific commercial property sectors:
Sector
Prime shops
Good Secondary shops
Prime Shopping Centres
Secondary Shopping Centres
Retail parks: Prime - open user
Prime offices: Major Provincial
Offices: secondary
Prime Industrial Estates
Secondary Industrial Estates
(source: CBRE Nov 2016)

Yield
4.25%
6.75%
4.65%
7.75%
5.50%
5.25%
9.00%
5.25%
8.25%

4.3

Over the long term, the property market is expected to offer good capital growth in
addition to yields in excess of other investment opportunities.

4.4

Where opportunities arise to invest in non-commercial properties these will also be
explored. As with other properties the decision to invest in residential property will
be based upon the expected yield exceeding investment criteria. The purpose of
the investment would be income generation.

4.5

The use of property to provide an income stream is becoming more popular with an
increasing number of Councils purchasing pure investment assets. Locally, a
number of Councils have been actively increasing the size of their investment
property portfolio, which makes a substantial contribution to their annual budget. A
desk-top review of their activity has provided a helpful steer in considering
investment property acquisitions.

4.6

Cheltenham Borough Council holds investment properties within its boundaries that
generate circa £2.247m investment income per annum and include a shopping
complex, office accommodation and industrial units. A strategy for further
commercial investment is currently being considered.

4.7

Cotswold District Council holds investment properties within the District that achieve
£218k rental income per annum from offices, commercial units, cafes and
workshop, whilst outside its boundaries it generates circa £316k investment income
per annum from three retail outlets including a small element of residential.

4.8

West Oxfordshire District Council holds investment properties within the District that
generate £682k per annum from industrial units, offices and retail, whilst outside its
boundaries it generates circa £1.874m investment income per annum which include
£1.650m for offices and industrial units within Oxfordshire and £224k for two
restaurant/diners outside the County.

4.9

Portsmouth City Council has invested in excess of £100m through its property
investment strategy across the country to generate new income to fund services
across the council.

Page 28

How should we do this?
5.0

PROPERTY INVESTMENT STRATEGY

5.1

The overall investment quantum and strategy is designed to provide sufficient
income to cover a meaningful proportion of the entire predicted budget gap. That is,
an investment fund of some £80m should provide an expected return in excess of
£500k per annum. This approach will be assessed as part of the treasury
management advice procured e.g. affordability requirements. If the total investment
amount is reduced, the income generated would not be sufficient to create financial
sustainability or a meaningful contribution to tackling the savings requirement in the
money plan. If Members chose to vary the portfolio investment yield target, overall
budget, or funding source, these would result in different financial outcomes.

5.2

It is proposed that the Council takes in a significant sum in borrowing to finance the
acquisition of a property portfolio. In other words, the initial loan to value ratio would
be close to 100%, and this creates a risk that Members should be aware of.

5.3

The capital value of any property can go down as well as up, and therefore the
capital redeemed at the end of the investment could be less than the sum initially
invested. This investment strategy is based on revenue income and capital value
increases have not been factored into the financial calculations.

5.4

A drop in capital value would only affect the Council’s cash flow position if it chose
to dispose of the investment whilst the value was less than at acquisition. However,
using PWLB to fund a purchase means lending is not secured against the property
and so the Council could opt to lose money on one property if the overall capital
value of the portfolio is greater than the loss capital value.

5.5.

The strategy and business plan allow for the costs needed to acquire and manage
the portfolio, e.g. acquisition, disposal, maintenance and management. The strategy
looks to mitigate risks by setting specific criteria for purchases and necessary due
diligence must be completed before any purchase.

5.6.

The target yield, less costs, will comfortably outperform the current investment
returns achieved by the Council in other treasury management activity.

6.0

Professional Support

6.1

In order to source appropriate investment assets, conduct due diligence and
successfully negotiate the acquisition of property, it will be necessary to contract
buying agents to act on behalf of the Council. An agent’s knowledge of the market
and properties that are about to come to market is invaluable in sourcing the best
investment options. Properties that end up in the wider public domain are usually
those that don’t represent the best investment prospects. Good agents can bring
information to the Council of the best assets available before the information is
more widely known and therefore put the Council in an advantageous position.

6.2

Having brought a potential investment to the attention of the Council, the agent will
be in a position to conduct the necessary due diligence including a full market
appraisal within the timescales required. An agent will also help ensure the Council
obtains value for money through the bidding and negotiation stage. It is the
Page 29

relationships that exist between buying and selling agents that result in a better
chance of a successful bid being entered and at a level that is matching or slightly
better than competitors. The use of an agent also lends substance to the Council’s
bid and can help to form a well-rounded bid.
6.3

Given these benefits, it is suggested that the council tender for buying agents
services at the earliest opportunity. It is estimated that the costs of contracting an
agent will be between 0.5% and 0.8% of the properties’ purchase price.

7.0

Criteria for Selecting Investment Assets

7.1

Investment property acquisitions need to be subject to the agreed parameters of our
investment strategy. Officers recommend that the Council’s initial selection of an
asset be assessed on two main criteria on a pass or fail basis.
a) Due to the Council’s requirement to generate income through a satisfactory
level of return, the net initial yield (NIY) range that we could expect to achieve
on the investment is likely to be between 5.0% and 9.0%. In order to achieve
the requirement, the net initial yield, which allows for the cost of purchase such
as agents fees, surveys and stamp duty, should exceed a minimum level of
5.0%.
b) All investments considered must initially provide income (yield) equal to or
above the Councils required rate of return (RRR) defined by the cost of capital
borrowing for purchase.

7.2

Any asset meeting these criteria will pass to the next stage for consideration. We
will not consider any properties that do not meet the two main criteria.

7.3

For assets that pass the first two criteria, officers recommend evaluating any
prospective property against a comprehensive set of defined property specific
criteria. . These criteria are referenced in appendix A and based on issues such as:
tenancy strength and tenure mix; lease length and length of unexpired tenure;
sector mix; location mix; investment yield; repairing terms; and investment lot size.
The way in which these criteria will be applied will be finalised following consultation
and advice from the appointed professional advisors.

7.4

Terms of Purchase
Officers recommend that acquisitions be conditional on the following points:
i.

The agreement of contract terms

ii.

Satisfactory report on title and completion of legal, tax, financial and technical
due diligence.

iii.

Satisfactory building and environmental surveys.

iv.

Full verification of the information provided within the marketing particulars.

v.

The benefit of any unclaimed capital allowances to be transferred to the
purchaser.
Page 30

vi.

7.5

Each party to bear its own costs in the transaction (if appropriate, following
expert advice)
Purchaser’s Costs
Any direct property acquisition would be subject to purchasers cost, typically these
would include the following:
1) Stamp Duty and Land Tax (SDLT) – no SDLT is paid against the first £150,000
of the transaction and only 2% paid on the next £100,000. After that SDLT is
paid at a rate of 5%
2) Agent’s fee – as previously highlighted this fee could be around 0.8% of
purchase price
3) Surveys and searches – to complete the necessary building surveys and
property and environmental searches it is estimated that around £10,000 per
transaction would be needed
4) Legal fees – to complete the purchase in a timely fashion, legal fees estimated
to be around £15,000 would be required per transaction although the council
would look to minimise this through its own in-house service

7.6

For each option an assumed level of the acquisition fees highlighted above of 7%
has been made.
Financing Costs

7.7

Whilst the council will use, where possible, any capital receipts it may generate from
land sales to help finance acquisition costs, the main source of financing of these
transactions will come from borrowing. Market rates are, at this time, at an historic
low and forecast to continue at these levels for at least another couple of years. By
way of an example the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), which is the traditional
source of borrowing for local government, has seen an average borrowing rate over
the last 22 years of 4.46%.

7.8

The table below illustrates the cost of borrowing.

Page 31

7.9

Whilst the decisions on who to borrow from and for what period are subject to the
Treasury Management Strategy, it is worth highlighting within this report the
potential added benefit that can be accrued by borrowing for short periods of time in
the current market. If the borrowing was kept short term e.g. between 3 and 6
months, rates of between 0.3% and 0.8% can be obtained in the current market
with forecasts expecting this to continue for at least the next two years. Should
forecasts of market movement start to show an upward curve of borrowing costs the
Council would lock in longer term borrowing at the current rate for loans of between
20 and 40 years.

7.10

In addition to the interest cost, the Council will need to make a Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) in order to repay the borrowing requirement. The Council’s current
strategy for MRP, which is approved annually as part of the budget process, allows
for charging the borrowing principal over the expected useful life of the relevant
assets in equal instalments or as the principal repayment on an annuity with an
annual interest rate, starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. So for
example, if an asset was anticipated to have a remaining useful life of 50 years the
Council could decide to charge MRP at 2% per annum.

8.0

Governance

8.1

To oversee the investment of the £80m fund suggested, it is recommended to
establish a Property Investment Board. It is suggested that this Board meet during
the acquisition phase to oversee and recommend the purchase of appropriate
investment properties. Consideration was given to using Cabinet for decision
making but with only eight meetings planned in the cycle and the fixed nature of
these meetings this may not be flexible enough to meet the demands of asset
investment. Similarly calling full Council for ad hoc investment decisions was not
considered to be an efficient process.

8.2

The suggested Terms of Reference for the Board are attached at Appendix B. It is
further suggested that delegation is given to the S151 Officer (Head of Finance) and
Head of Regeneration & Economic Development ) to approve investments of up to
£15m in any one lot following consultation with the Board and any potential
investment over £15m is referred to Cabinet for final decision.

8.3

It is important to note that the Board and S151 Officer will be bound by the overall
parameters of the Property Investment Strategy when making investment decisions.
This will give Council confidence that the business case for each property
acquisition has met a minimum level of security and return as defined within the
strategy.

8.4

The Board will be time limited for the investment of the £75m as recommended
within the strategy. Once investment has been completed up to this level, the
ongoing management and monitoring of the portfolio will fall under normal
arrangements. The Board will be disbanded unless the Council agrees to increase
the investment sum available to the Board.

9.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1

The Council will also consider the opportunity of non-direct property investment
through managed funds such as CCLA. These funds aim to provide investors with a
Page 32

high level of income and long-term capital appreciation. They are not however
classed as capital expenditure and therefore cannot be financed from external
borrowing.
9.2

The Council could decide against further property investment and rely on other
sources of income and savings to meet the budget deficit of the Council. It is not
clear whether such a plan will be sufficient to meet the financial requirements of the
council.

10.0

Reasons for Recommendations

10.1

A Property Investment Strategy is recommended to give a framework in which
investment decisions can be made. The approval of this strategy will allow the
Council to benefit from historically low borrowing rates in order to provide a net
return on each investment the Council decides to make. This income will help to
deliver a range of priorities and objectives set out in the adopted Council Plan.

11.0

ABCD Implications

11.1

There are no ABCD implications as a result of this report.

12.0

Financial Implications

12.1

Selecting appropriate property investment opportunities offers the Council the
potential to make significant revenue income contributions towards the projected
£2.6m deficit the Council faces over the next five years.

12.2

Appendix A details a range of scenarios and returns from any potential investments.

13.0

Legal Implications

13.1

The following legislation currently enables a local authority to buy property and
borrow to finance that activity:


Localism Act 2011 Section 1.



Local Government Act, 1972, Section 101, 111, 120.



Local Government Act 2003 Section 1.

13.2

The Council has a general power to acquire property, including investment
properties, and also has a general power to borrow but is under a general duty to
act prudently (Local Government Act 1972 powers).

13.3

Investment in Property is permitted under the General Power of Competence
introduced in the Localism Act 2011 which gives Councils the power to do anything
an individual can do provided it is not prohibited by other legislation.

13.4

Local Government Act 2003 Section 12 allows a local authority to borrow money for
the purposes of the prudent management of its financial affairs. In these situations
the S151 will be key in deciding whether the Council should invest monies and the
decision in any particular case should be made with a view to the financial return
that may be generated as a result of the investment and whether the investments
would fit within the agreed investment strategy of the Council. The decision to
purchase a particular property must, of course, have regard to all relevant
Page 33

considerations including the purposes for which the investment would be made,
taking into account all relevant considerations, ignoring irrelevant considerations,
not acting irrationally and balancing the risks against the potential rewards. In
addition, the Secretary of State’s Guidance relating to the adoption of an investment
strategy (annually) will be relevant- specifically the need for the Council to consider
security, liquidity and yield (in that order) in relation to any proposed investments.
Finally, regard should be had to the Council's fiduciary duties to tax payers. The
decision to acquire any particular property should be made subject to the S151
undertaking due diligence and determining that the purchase and associated
borrowing will constitute prudent management of the Council’s financial affairs.
13.5 In addition to valuations, appropriate title checks and searches will take place
before the Council is committed to purchase any property, in order to ensure that
the title the Council acquires is good and marketable, with (where relevant)
enforceable leases in place and the rents payable verified.
13.6 The legal considerations in respect of each acquisition will be considered as part of
the initial assessment process and be reported to the Property Investment Board.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.)
14.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
14.1 There is a level of risk that will be inherent in investing in illiquid assets for the long
term. These risks can be mitigated through the initial selection process and by
constant review of the individual property, portfolio and the market in order to inform
a hold and sell strategy for Council assets. Early engagement with current tenants
or the market will allow for continued occupancy of the properties.
15.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

15.1

None.

16.0

Other Corporate Implications

16.1

Community Safety
None.

16.2

Sustainability
None.

16.3

Staffing & Trade Union
None

Background Documents: None

Page 34

Appendix A –Property Investment Strategy & Business Plan
Overall Objective:
Increase revenue streams to contribute to the financial sustainability of Council,
enabling it to continue to deliver frontline services in line with adopted strategy &
objectives.
This will be achieved by the focussed acquisition of existing property assets using
predominantly prudential borrowing or any other unallocated or available Council
reserve or Capital Receipt.
Strategy
• Invest in properties to provide rental income with a minimum gross yield of 5.75%
across the portfolio (once complete)
• Achieve a spread of risk across a greater number of assets and by acquiring
properties across the range of different property asset classes, namely retail, leisure,
office, industrial and potentially residential.
• Properties will be acquired to hold rather than to dispose
• The Council will operate independently - The Council is not reliant on another
Council to progress with this strategy
• The Council will invest sufficiently so that the portfolio’s net revenue receipt delivers
sufficient income to fund the initiative and make a significant contribution to the
Council’s forecast budget gap (with the potential to meet the budget gap)
• Acquisition costs are forecast not to exceed 7% (Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT) /
Legal / Agents /Due Diligence)
• Management of the acquired assets will be outsourced to property professionals.
The costs for this management are to be included within the target yield.
• The legal work required to complete transactions is to be outsourced
• A retained agent will be commissioned to act on behalf of the Council to source
suitable properties and manage the acquisition due diligence process
Risk
• The risks of investing in property may be mitigated through the acquisition of assets
with secure, long income streams
• This needs to be balanced against the requirement for a given level of income yield
on capital invested in a careful and controlled manner, with specific analysis of risk
criteria carried out in the ‘due diligence’ stage prior to the completion of each
purchase
Page 35

• Should the portfolio yield drop below 5.75%, a review of the strategy will be
triggered
• The portfolio of investments being acquired should be diversified in order to spread
risks via a balanced portfolio, such diversification principally being across
geographical location and the use type of properties held
• The portfolio will be relatively risk-averse, limiting fresh investment to properties
with minimum unexpired lease terms of five years at the date of acquisition, and
tenants of strong financial standing
Initially, investment decisions will be taken as long as they fit within the below
criteria:
Location:
• Neutral – wherever opportunities arise in order to quickly acquire good investment
properties which deliver the minimum prescribed yield and are deemed an
acceptable risk
• In order to not over expose the Council to one particular geography, properties
outside of the Council’s area will be favoured initially
• As the portfolio gets larger, a mix of locations will be sought to create a balanced
portfolio
• A maximum exposure of 25% to one location will be sought once the full investment
budget is exhausted
• Good, commercially strong locations to protect capital value and ensure ongoing
occupier demand. E.g. for retail good out-of-town retail clusters/parks; for offices
close to transport infrastructure and catchment for employees; for industrial close to
major road / rail hubs
Sector:
• Neutral – Again, wherever opportunities arise in order to quickly acquire good
investment properties which deliver the minimum prescribed yield and are deemed
an acceptable risk.
• As the portfolio gets larger, a mix of sectors will be sought to create a balanced
portfolio.
• A maximum exposure of 25% to one sector will be sought once the full investment
budget is exhausted.

Page 36

Tenant mix:
• No ‘Sin’ assets – anything which could be deemed as likely to bring the Council into
disrepute or potential conflict, e.g. gambling, alcohol, political or religious buildings.
• As the portfolio gets larger, a mix of tenants will be sought to create a balanced
portfolio
• A maximum exposure of 15% to one tenant will be sought once the full investment
budget is exhausted
Lease length:
• Minimum 5 years unexpired (mean unexpired term for multi-let properties)
• Unless in exceptional circumstances (e.g. the property is being purchased with a
view to redevelopment), single-let properties will be avoided unless the unexpired
lease term is 10 years or more
• For multi-let properties, a mix of lease expiry dates are preferred, thereby limiting
void risk (unless the property is purchased with a view to re-development)
• Well-let to sound tenants on leases with a preference for ‘Full Repairing and
Insuring’ leases for single occupiers and through internal repair obligations and a
service charge for multi-let properties
• The final decision over the definition of “well-let” and “sound” will be agreed
between the property acquisition advisers (including legal due diligence) and the
individuals delegated with the responsibility to conclude the acquisition of the
properties
• This decision will be based on both the risk to the capital investment and revenue
returns
Investment Yield:
• Per investment lot, a minimum gross yield of 4% will be sought, before
management, maintenance and funding costs
• A maximum gross yield of 11% will be permitted
• As the portfolio gets larger, a mix of yields will be sought to create a balanced
portfolio
• The overall portfolio will have a target balanced portfolio yield of 5.75%
Cost:
• Individual lot sizes of up to £20m

Page 37

• Larger lot sizes will be favoured - smaller size properties have disproportionately
higher management costs and expose the Council to greater property void risks
• All investments will be subject to a minimum lot size of £3m(except where potential
residential investments are being made on a case by case basis).
For all of the above, flexibility of +/- 15% (relative to the measure) is allowable in
order to conclude a deal without recourse to reviewing the terms of this strategy. The
overall budget for acquisitions is not subject to this flexibility.
Funding:
• This is to be secured on a case by case basis on the most favourable terms
available predominantly through prudential borrowing or any other unallocated or
available Council reserve or capital receipt
• The term will not exceed the expected remaining life of the property, but as a rule,
the Council wishes to secure borrowing over a maximum 40 year term
• The Council will opt to repay on a repayment basis (akin to a mortgage), whereby
the entire acquisition cost will be repaid by the end of the term and the Council will
own the acquired asset outright
• The Council will therefore be in a position to recoup the asset value at the end of
the loan term in addition to the income it has derived during its ownership
Exit Strategy:
• The Council is investing to hold. It is not looking to actively trade commercial
property
• If capital values determine that the most prudent action is to sell an individual asset,
this will be considered on a case by case basis and will be acted upon in
consultation with the ‘Property Investment Board’group Chair, Leader, S151 officer
and Head of Place
• It is proposed that all properties will be held as Council Assets. This may change if
the Council were to set-up an arms-length management organisation (ALMO) or
trading company and it was found to be commercially advantageous for such a
vehicle to hold the asset. Any property transfer between the Council and such a
vehicle would likely incur a 5% SDLT charge
• It is important to note that there would be early repayment charges if the loan used
to acquire the commercial property were to be repaid before the end of the loan
term. However, Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) lending is not secured against
property, so this would not inhibit the asset being traded during the loan period. An
alternative asset would need to be purchased (& held) with any sale proceeds

Page 38

Tax Implications:
• Due to the Council holding the asset, it is not anticipated that there will be any
corporation tax or income tax implications from this strategy
• Some properties may be VAT elected, meaning VAT must be charged to tenants.
This will be dealt with on a case by case basis and will be covered by the due
diligence connected with that acquisition. The Council is able to charge and recover
VAT
• Capital Gains Tax would not apply to assets sold from Council ownership. This
position may change if a company were to be used to hold the acquired asset
Governance Arrangements:
Purchase
As per section 8 of the report
Running / Review
Assets to be managed by a contracted third party initially, with overview by the S151
Officer and Head of Place. The board to receive regular reporting to confirm portfolio
composition and performance. Regular reporting to Overview & Scrutiny Committee.
Disposal
To be considered if portfolio breaches the agreed strategy. Decisions to be made in
accordance with section 3 of the report.
Financial Implications
Below is a breakdown of how an acquisition of £75m plus acquisition costs would
perform for the Council in potentially meeting the gap identified in 2017-2022 Money
Plan.

Term
Assumed Loan Rate
Acquisition Fees
Capital Investment
Total Investment
Monthly Repayment
Annual Repayment
Total Repayment Made
Target Portfolio Yield
Annual Rent Receivable

Amount
40
2.65%
7%
75000000

£'000

5,250,000
75,000,000
80,250,000
271,334
3,256,007
130,240,260
5.75%
4,312,500

Page 39

Loan Repayment
Management Costs
Sinking Fund
Surplus

3%
5%

(3,256,007)
(129,375)
(215,625)
711,493

Page 40

Appendix B
PROPERTY INVESTMENT BOARD
TERMS OF REFERENCE
1.

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

To receive investment prospectus and officer evaluations of potential property
acquisitions; to make recommendations to the s151 Officer with regards to
investment; and to oversee the due diligence and acquisition process in accordance
with the Property Investment Strategy.
2.

CONSTITUTION AND POWERS
(i)
The Board shall comprise four: two nominations by the Leader of the
Council, one of whom must be the Cabinet Member with responsibility for
Finance, and two nominations by the Head of Paid Service, one of whom
must be the S151 Officer
(ii)
Other Council Officers will attend the Group, primarily the Asset
Manager.
(iii)

The Group shall, at its first meeting, appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair.

(iv)
The quorum of the Group shall be two, one of whom must be the S151
Officer and one of whom must be a Councillor.
(v)

Substitution arrangements will not apply.

(vi)
In the event of a tied decision, the S151 Officer will have the casting
vote.

3.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
(a)
To receive investment prospectus and initial officer evaluations of
potential property acquisitions.
(b)
To evaluate the individual proposals presented and either approve or
reject the proposals for further due diligence.
(c)
To oversee the further due diligence undertaken on approved
proposals.
(d)
Upon completing due diligence, to either approve or reject the proposal
for investment.

Page 41

(e)
To set the individual investment parameters, within the overall
Commercial Property Investment Strategy parameters, for bidding on each
property.
(f)
To oversee the completion of the acquisition of properties up to the
total value of investment approved by Council.

4.

DELEGATED POWERS
All issues that require a decision that has not previously been delegated will
be reported to the Cabinet and/or Council as appropriate.

Page 42

Agenda Item 9

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

Subject:

Gloucester Museums Membership

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Lucy Chilton, Visitor Experience Manager

21/06/17

Budget/Policy Framework:

Lucy.chilton@gloucester.gov.uk

No
Tel: 396570

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To seek agreement for amendments to the Gloucester City Museums Pass to
increase the charge and amend the member benefits.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that the current Gloucester City Museum
membership price be increased and the benefits package revised as set out in
paragraph 3.13.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

September 2011 free admission to the City’s Museums was ended and admission
prices and Museum membership were introduced as follows.

Day Ticket
Type
Price
Adult
£3
Concession £2

3.2

Annual
Membership
Type
Price
Individuals
£10
Family
£20

Subsequently a Commercial Review of Cultural Services by ‘michael + partners’
found that “The current charging model used by the museums is insufficiently clear,
is not generally perceived to be of good value and does not distinguish effectively
between local residents and visitors/tourists who have differing attitudes to value
and repeat visits”. They suggested that the City Council should “Implement a new
super-simple charging structure based on a single charge that gives 12 months
general admission access to both Museums. Capture personal details at point of
purchase – ostensibly to enable replacement tickets to be issued, but also allows
customer database to be built”.

Page 43

3.3

The rationale and benefits included “Simple to market and explain, provides greater
benefit/value to locals who are able to make repeat visits during the year,
represents improved value versus current arrangements and provides context for
driving greater visitor numbers and growing entry fee revenues.

3.4

The new membership was launched in April 2015 and came with a number of
benefits. See below.
Day Ticket
Type
Adult
Concession
Family

Price
£5
£3
£12

Annual
Membership
Type
Price
Adult
£5
Concession £3
Family
£12

Membership Benefits
-

-

Unlimited entry to City Council run
Museums
Complimentary access to ‘summer
exhibitions’
Unlimited entry to the Eastgate
Viewing Chamber and associated
tours
10% off purchases through the gift
shop
Unlimited complimentary tickets to
Culture Club talks
Unlimited complimentary tickets to
art/craft classes at the Museums

3.5

Anyone visiting the Museums for a day out would automatically become a member
as the annual membership is the same price as a day ticket. The changes offered
incredible value for money for anyone purchasing a membership, but in practice it
limits the City Council’s ability to generate additional income and prevents the
consequential costs of providing some of the benefits from being fully recovered.

3.6

Gloucester is a historic city that has many unique assets. One popular attraction is
the Eastgate Viewing Chamber and the Roman Soldier tour. These tours are
delivered in-house and normally cost £5 per adult. Annual membership offers
unlimited free access to these tours for the whole year.

3.7

In addition, because the tours are delivered in-house by museums staff, it is
necessary to bring in additional staff to provide cover, adding to overall costs.

3.8

In 2016, the Museums service was stretched by the success of the Robot Exhibition
that ran for 6 weeks during the summer. This exhibition brought 55,000 visitors
through the doors, many of whom purchased a membership which will also be valid
for entry into the 2017 summer exhibition and will limit the income generating
potential of this summer’s exhibition.

3.9

In addition to the day ticket/Museum membership, the two City Council Museums
partner with the Soldiers of Gloucestershire Museum and National Waterways
Museum to offer a city-wide Museums pass. See below.

Page 44

Annual
Membership
Type
Price
Adult
£10
Family
£20

3.10

Membership Benefits
-

Unlimited entry to 4 city Museums
Plus all the benefits included in the City
Council Museum benefits – see 3.4

If this city-wide Museums pass were to be purchased at one of the City Council
venues, then the City Council would receive £6.66 per adult membership and
£13.33 per family ticket. If these passes are purchased at the Soldiers of
Gloucestershire Museum or the National Waterways Museum, then the City Council
venues would receive £1.66 per adult membership and £3.33 for a family
membership. The rationale behind this was to incentivise the museum that secured
the sale with a larger proportion of the income.
Since going live with the new till system in November 2016, the City Council
Museums service has received £4114 in income from the City Council Museum
membership scheme and £8447 income from the city-wide Museums pass.
Numbers of each sold were almost equal indicating that the City Council should
continue to be part of the wider Museum pass. Further analysis will be required to
ensure that the City Council Museums are receiving maximum benefit when sales
are made at the other participating venues.

3.11

There are a number of key issues with the Gloucester City Museums membership
scheme.
-

-

-

The Gloucester City Museums membership prices are excellent value for money
for visitors, to the point where we need to challenge both the price and the level
of benefits offered.
The tour of the Eastgate Viewing Chamber is something that is very popular and
unique to the city and is a premium service which could be separated from the
membership package.
To deliver the Roman Soldier Eastgate Viewing Chamber Tours, additional
resource is required; therefore a better pricing structure is required to ensure
that the Council recovers its costs and is not making a loss by providing these
tours.

3.12

As part of the Together Gloucester process the new Cultural and Traded Services
Team is tasked with delivering a great visitor experience but also being more
commercially astute and mindful of opportunities to reduce cost and generate
additional income. As a consequence it is necessary and timely to re-evaluate the
membership on offer at the Museums.

3.13

Set out below are proposals to amend Museums membership and they are
recommended for immediate implementation:

Day Ticket
Type
Price
Adult
£5
Concession £3

Annual Membership
Type
Price
Adult
£7.50
Concession £4
Page 45

Membership Benefits
Unlimited entry to City Council run
Museums
10% off tickets for events,

Family

£12

Family

£15
-

workshops and tours
A regular Members’ newsletter
Exclusive advanced booking
opportunities

3.14

A modest increase in membership will help towards delivering the savings required
by the Museums service and will enable the service to continue to build on its
successes by developing an exciting programme of events and exhibitions. These
new benefits would apply to new members whilst existing members would still
receive the benefits that the previous membership offered. The day ticket will price
remain the same.

3.15

It is proposed that the Roman Soldier tours of the Eastgate Viewing Chamber will
remain at £5 per person and will run alongside the Museums membership scheme.
Members will be entitled to a 10% discount off the full price as one of their member
benefits. Gloucester Civic Trust charge £5 for their guided walks of the city and
tours into the Kings Bastion therefore £5 would be a reasonable cost to visitors.

3.16

The Council would continue to participate in the City-wide Museums Pass scheme.

4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

An appropriately administered membership scheme provides the framework to
develop a strong and sustainable friends group or development trust able to support
the further development of the museum service, engage a broad range of interested
parties in the potential of volunteering and open additional avenues of fundraising.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

Given the existing limitations on income generation and the unsustainable list of
benefits offered under the existing scheme, no change is not considered to be a
viable solution.

5.2

Reversion to day tickets only would be a backward step which would reduce income
and minimise the potential benefits of recent investment in point-of-sale systems
which maximise opportunities for membership services, sales and marketing.

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

To increase the sustainability of the Museums service and continue to provide an
accessible, engaging and exciting experience for visitors and residents,
opportunities for income generation need to be maximised.

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

Immediate implementation is essential to maximise the benefits of the summer
Dinosaurs Exhibition starting on Saturday 15th July.

Page 46

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

Historical/past data is difficult to access which makes it difficult to accurately
forecast the likely impact of the proposed changes. The new ticketing and point of
sale systems implemented late last year will help data capture in the future and will
improve our financial forecasting. However, it is imperative that the Museums move
forward with this membership change to maximise the benefits of this this summer’s
exhibition.
The proposed recommendation is expected to deliver increased income to the
museums service and therefore assist in achieving required income targets.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

The power to charge for admission to museums is given by Section 13 of the Public
Libraries and Museums Act 1964. Section 13(2) requires local authorities in
determining whether, and in what manner, to exercise its powers to charge, to take
into account the need to secure that the museum plays its full part in the promotion
of education in the area and shall have particular regard to the interests of children
and students.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

10.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
10.1 There may be a reluctance to take a Museum membership due to the modest price
increase; however, the day ticket option is still available and this option would be
cost neutral.
10.2 Feedback has shown that the varying level of ticket/membership options has
caused confusion to visitors and requires streamlining. Although the service will still
offer a number of ticket/membership options, visitors will have better understanding
of each offer and also provides the City Council with the opportunity to improve its
marketing material.
11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

The increase in Museum membership charges is modest and still provides excellent
value for money. The day ticket option will still remain.

11.2

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

Not applicable.

Page 47

Sustainability
12.2

Not applicable.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

Not applicable.

Potential Media Interest – media release to be prepared to correspond with release date.
Background Documents:

None

Page 48

Agenda Item 10

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

Subject:

Voluntary Sector and Community Development Funding and
Activities for 2017/18

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

Yes

Contact Officer:

Anne Brinkhoff, Corporate Director

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: anne.brinkhoff@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

21 June 2017

No
Tel: 396745

None

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To approve the council’s proposed approach for the use of the Voluntary and
Community Sector grants and activities budget in the financial year to March 2018.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

The proposed allocation and use of the VCS grants and activities budget for
the 2017/18 financial year as outlined in paragraph 3.3 be approved.

(2)

Authority be delegated to the Corporate Director, in consultation with the
Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods to enter into
agreements or other documentation as considered appropriate on terms
approved by the Council’s Solicitor.

3.0

Background

3.1

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) is a key priority for the Council and
a guiding principle in how we deliver services, engage with our communities and
work in partnership with other agencies. We believe that each and every
community has assets or strengths that will enable communities to flourish and
should, over time, make communities more resilient and self-sufficient. Our role is to
support communities to recognise strengths and deliver for themselves, as opposed
to be more passive recipients of public services. We have successfully used the
approach in a number of communities, including Westgate, Matson, Barton &
Tredworth, Kingsway and Podsmead, which has led to sustained activities and
community led support that is continuing to improve the lives of local people.
Importantly, many of these activities have led to a dynamic and organic growth of
Page 49

projects, events, activities or support – without any additional intervention from the
Council. The deployment of Community Builders has been instrumental in this. At
the same time, the Council recognises that there is a need for specific services,
including advice and support, to support vulnerable individuals and communities.
3.2

Our vision for Asset Based Community Development is a guiding principle for
investing our voluntary and community sector budget. At present we invest in the
following activities:






Grant Funding to advice agencies (The Law Centre; CAB; Gloucestershire
Action for Refugees and Asylum Seekers (GARAS)) – who provide advice and
very specific support to vulnerable people and communities.
A grant budget for the Voluntary and Community Sector – where voluntary
or community organisations are able to bid for grants against specific criteria
which are in line with our investment principles of ABCD.
Councillor Community Fund – a fund to enable councillors to support
community led projects
Your Gloucester – a working budget to enable community building activities,
and small scale ABCD grants
Community Builder – a ring-fenced fund for a dedicated Community Builder in
Westgate ward.

In addition we receive a budget of £50,000 from the County Council for Youth
Grants. This budget is allocated on an annual basis and we have confirmation from
the County Council that the funding is available for the 2017/18 financial year.
3.3

The Budget Savings Programme, as approved by Council in February, sets out a
target saving of £195,000 over two years for the VCS grants and activities budget.
This represents a reduction of over 60% from current levels.
The table below shows the breakdown of funding for 2016-17, and the proposed
reductions for the next two years.

Service Level Agreement (SLAs) with Advice
Agencies
VCS Grants
Councillor Community Fund
Community Building
Your Gloucester
TOTAL
Reduction from 16/17 levels

4.0

Rationale for proposed reductions in funding

4.1

Advice Agencies

2016-17
£139,358

2017-18
£71,000

2018-19
£71,000

£47,000
£78,000
£30,000
£20,000
£314,358

£25,000
£39,000
£15,000
£10,000
£160,000
£154,000

0
£18,000
£15,000
£10,000
£115,000
£198,000

4.1.1 The Council currently has SLAs with three advice agencies:
 Citizens Advice Bureau: £61,801 per annum, for a range of generic and
specialist advice in areas such as: Benefits, Debt and Financial, Employment,
Housing and Relationships. Advice is provided free of charge through different
Page 50





channels (with the majority being face to face). The service is open to anyone in
need of advice. It tends to be taken up by more vulnerable people in society.
The Law Centre: £75,522 – provision of free, confidential and impartial legal
advice to Gloucester residents in the areas of: Immigration, Asylum, Welfare
Benefits, Housing and Family Law. It offers services to people who live within
the city boundaries
GARAS: £2,035 – provision of support and advice to asylum seekers and
refugees, including free English classes and support with interview practice,
writing CVs and gaining work experience through volunteering

4.1.2 All agencies provide a valuable service to local residents with high customer
satisfaction.
The proposed grant allocation for 2017/18 and 2018/19 is:
 Citizens Advice Bureau - £31,000 per annum
 The Law Centre: £38,000 per annum
 GARAS: £2,000 per annum
4.1.3 The proposed reduction in the SLA for Advice Agencies amounts to just over 50%,
less than the overall reduction to the grants budget of 66%.
4.1.4 We are in on-going discussion with both advice agencies to understand the impact
of the reduced grant and we have been informed by the CAB that there will be a
reduction of general advice from 5 days a week to 3 days a week, while opening
hours for advice for debt and financial capability will remain unchanged. We
understand from conversations with the Law Centre that the current provision of
advice will remain unchanged as the Centre will rely on reserves; however we are
aware that there is an increasing risk to their long-term financial sustainability.
4.1.5 Officers are having discussions with both agencies and the County Council (who
provides funding to the CAB also), exploring how we can support them in reducing
accommodation costs, generating other means of income, and redesigning how
they deliver their services, including use of IT where appropriate. We will review and
simplify our SLAs and reporting requirements. To inform this process, we
undertook a face to face consultation with users of the centre over four weeks in
April to ascertain what is important to them in accessing the service. We obtained
95 responses of which 28 were from users of the Law Centre, and 66 from the CAB,
with one response not indicating which agency they had visited. Although this is a
relatively low sample size in relation to the total number of service users around
95% of those using the centre during the days the consultation took place
completed the survey.
4.1.6 Key messages were:
 A large proportion of visits to the Law Centre and Citizen’s Advice Bureau are
repeat visits concerning the same issue, which would indicate the need to look
at how issues can be better dealt with at the first point of contact.
 Generally service users find it easy to get an appointment, however during the
consultation staff primarily spoke to service users attending drop in sessions.
Women generally found it harder to get to the sessions along with carers which
would most likely be due to their caring responsibilities

Page 51












Concerns raised over seeing an advisor included waiting times, the inability to
book an appointment online and the ability to speak to an advisor over the
telephone
People generally find it easy to get to the centres, although this is less so for
older people. There were some issues raised about difficulties with travel costs,
mobility and the reliability of public transport
Both centres are seen by customers as key sources of information providing
opportunities to provide advice across the two centres, potentially avoiding
additional contact
Friends and family were highlighted as the third highest source of information for
those using the centre. This provides further opportunity to upskill the public to
deal with low level advice via effective online signposting, which would be
particularly effective for supporting our young people
Word of mouth and other agencies were seen as the best source of
communication – with adverts/newspapers being the least favoured channel.
Doctors Surgeries, Pharmacies and Libraries were services most likely to be
used by the service users spoken to. This allows for opportunity to provide
advice and services through libraries and to provide appropriate literature in our
GP practices and pharmacies
Overall 77% of respondents use the internet at least once a day, and 62% use it
several times a day which would suggest that online support is a real option for
some users.
Overall what matters most to service users is receiving the right answer,
receiving a quick response and face to face support.

4.1.7 Cabinet will be aware from discussions at Budget Council that the proposed
reduction in funding for the CAB and Law Centre is contested. We received a
petition with 406 signatories calling upon Gloucester City Council to reconsider its
proposals to reduce their funding by 50% as providers of vital services.
4.2

VCS Grants Budget: It is proposed to reduce the VCS Grants budget to £25,000 in
the current year and phase this out altogether in 2018/19. In line with our ABCD
principles, we propose to provide grants for projects that will support community
cohesion, increase social action and share skills. Looking forward, we believe that
the introduction of the Gloucester Lottery, which is raising approximately £30,000
per annum for good causes at the time of writing, is creating a sound platform for
community projects to fundraise for themselves. At the time of writing, the ‘central
pot’ is at £13,500 which will be available for VCS organisations to bid for. We
continue to actively promote the Lottery and are confident that this central pot will
increase over time and will offset the proposed grant reduction.

4.3

Councillor Community Fund: It is proposed to reduce the Members Allocation
Fund to £1,000 per councillor for 2017/18 to spend on community projects within
their wards. We have simplified the guidance and application form and process. We
propose to reduce this to £500 per councillor in 2018/19. Our evidence shows that it
is often very small amounts of funding that unlock effective community action. We
will continue to signpost members to other sources of funding for community
projects, such as Barnwood Trust.

4.4

It is proposed to continue to fund the Community Builder for Westgate until
2018/19, to continue our project with the Police and Barnwood Trust who are
deploying a cohort of five community builders, hosted by Barnwood Trust. The
Page 52

project includes a longitudinal evaluation to identify outcomes and benefits over a
two year period. A first evaluation report is expected in before the summer.
4.5

It is proposed to retain a small budget of £10,000 for Your Gloucester (ABCD
Grants) funding for the next two years, enabling officers to support this approach
across the City as a whole.

5.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

5.1

These grants are instrumental in continuing our ABCD work in the City and we use
our budgets to invest in enabling our communities to become more resilient and
self-organising.

6.0

Alternative Options Considered

6.1

Consideration could be given to cease offering grants altogether. However, some
groups would not be able to meet and or grow community social action and the
council recognises the value grants offer to the voluntary and community sector and
the social action this helps to generate.

6.2

Grant funding is an investment into communities. These financial investments
support associations which reduce social isolation, encourage physical activity and
other outcomes. Consideration should be given to aligning the Community Grants
with commissioning that also seeks to achieve these outcomes in partnership with
Gloucestershire County Council and other partners.

7.0

Reasons for Recommendations

7.1

Community grants offer support to a wide number and range of groups that have a
positive impact on the well-being of residents within their neighbourhoods.

8.0

Future Work and Conclusions

8.1

We will review our SLAs, making them simpler, and will continue to develop our
relationships with the CAB and Law Centre supporting them in reducing their
reliance on grants. Over the longer term, we are keen to explore the opportunities to
creating a public sector hub.

8.2

The new Community Wellbeing Team will aim to work with groups and individuals to
connect them with additional funding opportunities as well as to other community
contacts with mutual aspirations who they can share resources with.

8.3

The allocation of grant funding will be kept under constant review. If alternative
ways of allocating money to better support the ABCD approach are identified or the
sum of money for grants changes significantly then a report will be presented to
Cabinet to determine any changes to how the fund is allocated.

9.0

Financial Implications

9.1

As outlined in section 3.3 of the report. The proposal makes a significant
contribution to meeting the savings targets for 2017-18 and 2018-19.
[Finance have been consulted in the preparation of this report]
Page 53

10.0

Legal Implications

10.1

The Council has a wide variety of statutory powers to award grants to voluntary and
community groups.

10.2

The guidance, criteria and process adopted by the Council demonstrates that
decisions to award grants are taken in a fair and transparent manner. Written
documentation of the award ensures that a successful organisation understands
their obligations and the terms upon which the grant has been awarded.

10.3

The Council has undertaken a consultation exercise to comply with its obligations
under s 3(2) Local Government Act 1999 (Best Value) and s 149 Equality Act 2010.
[One Legal have been consulted in the preparation of this report]

11.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
11.1 Removing or reducing funding could have an impact on the number of projects
delivered and the support that communities need to develop and encourage social
action.
11.2 There are opportunities to use smaller funds that will grow community action
through ABCD, for example hiring a venue is relatively low cost but has a high value
in assisting groups to meet.
12.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

12.1

The screening stage of the PIA highlighted possible impacts on age, disability and
race. In response we carried out additional consultation with service users to
understand how they use the service, the outcomes they want to achieve and what
matters most to them. The key findings are presented in paragraph 4.1.6 above and
the survey results will be used to design the further Service Level Agreement and in
our on-going support of and work with the agencies.

13.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

13.1

The work done through community projects can help increase social interactions
and add to a feeling of security thus reducing the fear of crime.
Sustainability

13.2 Grant funding does not directly encourage sustainability of groups who are
dependent on the income. However, if grants are seen as occasional investments
and groups have a plan around this concept; this will create opportunities around a
skill sharing economy within the voluntary and community sector.
Staffing & Trade Union
13.3

Not applicable

Page 54

Press Release drafted/approved
13.4

A press release will be drafted in readiness for the launch of the 2017-18 grants
scheme.

Background Documents:
People Impact Assessment
Petition
Advice Centre Consultation

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

21st June 2017

Subject:

Regeneration at Kings Quarter

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy

Wards Affected:

Westgate

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Philip Ardley, Consultant - Asset Management
Email: philip.ardley@gloucester.gov.uk

Appendices:

None.

Budget/Policy Framework:

No
Tel: 396107

GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report
To note the progress made for the new Kings Quarter regeneration proposals.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that it be noted that the progress made with the
Kings Quarter regeneration and, in particular,
(1)

The Stanhope Development Agreement for Kings Quarter has now been
formally terminated and the transfer with copyright for all the agreed
documents completed.

(2)

Our Consultants LDA Design and Jones Lang LaSalle are on target to produce
a Business Plan for the Kings Quarter regeneration for consideration by
Cabinet at their meeting on 13th September 2017.

3.0

Background

3.1

This report provides a summary of progress since the last report to Cabinet on 11th
January 2017.

3.2

Following the acquisition of Aviva’s Kings Quarter property interests in December
2014, the City Council are now the freeholders and long leaseholders of the majority
of the land required for this major regeneration scheme. On 22nd June 2016 Cabinet
agreed to terminate the Development Agreement with Stanhope (Gloucester)
Limited subject to settling for services received to date and copyright to documents.

3.3

The termination of the Stanhope Development Agreement has now been concluded
with a legally binding agreement that protects the interests of the City Council. All
the scheduled documents have been received together with the required copyright.

Page 57

3.4

The Council appointed LDA Design and Jones Lang LaSalle in December 2016 to
progress the delivery of the council’s number one priority regeneration project
known as new Kings Quarter. The appointment focused on the provision of a
targeted and dedicated project management resource supported by urban design,
planning and commercial advisors. This resource is based within the Council’s
regeneration team two days a week and works on the project remotely for a further
third day.

3.5

The agreed project programme is extremely challenging with an expectation that the
following milestones will be reached. The Business Plan will be produced in July
2017 with the intention of submitting this to Cabinet on 13 th September 2017;
subject to approval and recommendations a planning team would be procured with
the aim of submitting a comprehensive application by March 2018. This would
enable works and demolition to commence in the Autumn of 2018 and construction
to commence in the Spring of 2019.

3.6

We are currently on target and since January, the project lead with support from the
regeneration team has completed a number of key work streams. These include
creating a comprehensive database of all relevant existing technical and policy
information pertaining to Kings Quarter. Conducting one to one meetings and
interviews with key stakeholder groups including county and internal council
officers. Meetings have been held with external influencers and stakeholders. Dates
have been confirmed to meet GWR, Network Rail and the Gloucestershire Hospitals
Trust during early June.

3.7

Two areas have been identified as requiring further technical information. The first
being a commercial retail assessment to confirm the demographic and profile of
existing shoppers within the city and to advise on the future shopping potential. As a
result specialists, FSP Retail Limited, have been appointed via our approved
procurement route to complete a revised retail assessment for the city for detailed
input into the Business Plan. The second area being a need to further stress test
the parking strategy for the city. We are working to deliver a report to investigate the
next 15 years parking capacity for the city and provide a breakdown of forecast
annual supply and demand. Any shortfall will be highlighted based on the timing of
possible closure of existing car parks and the delivery of new developments.

3.8

In order to assist possible future funding, LDA Design have initiated and progressed
drafting of a Homes and Communities Agency Funding Agreement to help provide
further capacity and enabling funding as well as acquisition costs for land assembly.
They are also updating a grant funding application for the GFirst Local Enterprise
Partnership Growth Fund to enable submission in September 2017, once a new
funding round is reopened.

3.9

The creation of a parameter plan has been brought forward to May 2017, which will
establish the design and delivery principles and drivers for Kings Quarter. Through
the creation of the parameter plan, the key constraints and infrastructure
requirements and costs required to bring forward development at Kings Quarter can
be accurately modelled. This will enable the completion of a high-level appraisal of
the viability of the scheme, and therefore allow the business plan to provide advice
on delivery models. Internal workshops with key council officers have been set up in
order to ensure that all aspects of the council are involved in the planning approach.

Page 58

3.10 LDA and Jones Lang LaSalle are undertaking market research on the prospects for
a food hub and twenty first century market for Kings Quarter. This includes a review
of the potential for temporary uses to help establish King’s Square and the adjoining
area as a destination in its own right.
3.11

Jones Lang LaSalle are providing market knowledge and advice to support council
officers in negotiations with potentially significant office occupier interest.
Additionally they have started negotiations with landowners identified as critical to
the overall land assembly. The aim is to conclude and agree heads of terms by the
end of August 2017. Commercial advice is being provided on the decanting
implications for existing tenants.

4.0

Reasons for Recommendations

4.1

To achieve a final closure on the Stanhope Development Agreement with a legally
binding termination and to note further progress for Kings Quarter regeneration.

5.0

Future Work and Conclusions

5.1

If the recommendations are approved, officers will continue to work with LDA
Design and Jones Lang LaSalle to bring forward a deliverable Business Plan for
Kings Quarter. In addition, further progress reports on Kings Quarter will continue to
be provided.

6.0

Legal Implications

6.1

None noted to date.

7.0

Financial Implications.

7.1

The three year budget for this Kings Quarter enabling consultancy work was
approved by Cabinet on 22nd June 2016 for £150,000 per annum and we are
currently within that budget.

8.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

8.1

The key risk in the Kings Quarter scheme at this stage is the failure to procure a
suitable project development partner and funding to take the project forward.

9.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

9.1

At present, there are no adverse impacts identified for any of the Protected
Characteristic groups; as the regeneration of Kings Quarter progresses, Impact
Assessments may be required to ensure that those who require parking and access
to the Kings Quarter area are given due consideration.

10.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

10.1

Safety of the public will be managed during the Kings Quarter regeneration by the
City Council and their appointed Construction Design Management health & safety
advisor in association with the main contractor.
Page 59

Sustainability
10.2

None specific to this report, although sustainability will be considered when
specifying products, and in construction methods.
Staffing & Trade Union

10.3

None.

Background Documents:
None.

Page 60

Agenda Item 12

Date:

21st June 2017

Meeting:

Cabinet

Subject:

Railway Station Growth Deal 3 Application Review

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy

Wards Affected:

All Wards

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Anthony Hodge, Head of Place

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: Anthony.hodge@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No
Tel: 396304

None

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

This report responds to a Notice of Motion proposed by Councillor Hilton and
subsequently amended by the Leader of the Council on the 23rd March 2017,
concerning the bid for Growth Deal 3 Funding to secure improvements at
Gloucester Railway Station and its environs.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that authority be delegated to the Head of Place, in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Regeneration & Economy, to continue to
seek funding and submit appropriate bids to deliver improvements around the
railway station and its links into the City Centre.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

Following a Notice of Motion proposed by Councillor Hilton, Gloucester City
Council, on the 23rd March 2017 resolved that:
This Council welcomes the award of Growth Deal 3 Funding for Gloucestershire
projects which benefit the City including the Cheltenham Cyber Park and the A40
Longford improvements but expresses its disappointment that its bid, "Gloucester
Railway Station, A Gateway to Economic Growth" failed to secure funding.
This Council agrees that further investment in Gloucester Railway Station and its
links to both Gloucester Royal Hospital and the City centre are important to
Gloucester's regeneration.
It also agrees that major improvements to the subway from Great Western Road to
Bruton Way should be part of such a scheme.

Page 61

This Council asks the Cabinet Member for Regeneration to provide a report to the
Cabinet on why this bid was not successful on this occasion and what lessons have
been learned.
The report to also recommend a way forward on how the Council can secure
funding to deliver improvements to Gloucester Railway Station and its subway as
suggested in the Growth Deal Bid.
3.2

In response to the Notice of Motion, extensive preparation work had been
undertaken prior to the submission of the Growth Deal 3 (GD3) application.
Working with senior officers from Tewkesbury and Cheltenham Borough Councils,
the proposed scheme had been identified as a priority within the Gloucestershire
Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) pipeline schedule for priority
investment projects. It was also consistent with the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP)
for Gloucestershire and its Regeneration & Public Transport Rail sections (within
the document). This resulted in the project being strategy compliant and it was well
positioned to be considered for GD3 funding, when the bidding round was declared
open.

3.3

Following a call from GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) for bids to be
considered for GD3 funding, an initial submission was made in April 2016 for
£4.8M. In May the LEP offered constructive feedback on the initial submission.
This feedback was made within the context of the bidding process being highly
competitive and comments made that as it stood, whilst inviting a full business plan,
the bid was going to experience stiff competition and there were a large number of
high quality bids being considered. Comments made included:
i)
ii)

The project was not transformational enough
It did not deliver sufficient outputs across a number of SEP objectives

3.4

The LEP’s comments were challenging and extremely helpful. As a consequence
City Council Officers entered into extensive dialogue with the Homes and
Communities Agency, Great Western Railway and also sought advice from the
Regeneration Advisory Board. The Regeneration Advisory Board challenged
Officers and endorsed the concept of incorporating a new footbridge to increase
connectivity between the hospital area of the city and the city centre.

3.5

The outcome of those discussions was that the following improvements to the
submission were made:

3.6

1)

Linking the proposals to the potential investment opportunities being
considered by the Homes and Communities Agency to use the GD3
investment to unlock sites along Great Western Road and St Oswald’s for
housing delivery and enhancing connectivity to the city centre

2)

Working with the Train Operating Company, GWR, to provide confidence in
the locality through this investment that would encourage them to invest
£2.5M in a new station car park and radically improve the investment
conditions in the locality.

The final bid was both aspirational, but also quite conservative to ensure that as
many potential outcomes of the bidding round could be accommodated by the
Page 62

proposition. At this stage, the overall amount of funding available through Growth
Deal 3 was not known. The bid was submitted providing options:
Option 1 £4.8M GFirst investment:
•
•
•
•
•

Site acquisition to create opportunity
Subway improvements to create connectivity, unlocking major residential
development
Station building enveloping to deliver a gateway
One refurbished public square (Kings Square)
One new public square outside of the railway station to deliver place and
unlock investment

Option 2 £9.5M GFirst investment:
•

All outputs as per Option 1 except the subway refurbishment is replaced with
a new transformational and iconic footbridge.

3.7

An early review of the revised bid concluded that the more joined up approach with
the HCA and the private sector (GWR) and the footbridge bridge created a bid that
was transformational and the potential outputs significant. It was welcomed by the
LEP.

3.8

Officers submitted a revised bid in June 2016 which included the optioned approach
as articulated above. Following feedback from the LEP, it was because of the more
comprehensive approach and the bold proposal of the footbridge that the City
Council’s bid was shortlisted as number 5, out of 11, to be discussed with central
government. Without such changes, it is most unlikely it would have been
shortlisted.

3.9

In February 2017, GFirst announced that Government allocated £29.13m to
Gloucestershire’s LEP in the latest round of Growth Deal funding. This round, which
is a bidding process and had been the most competitive yet, was more than three
times over-subscribed with high-quality proposals.

3.10

Based on previous rounds, the LEP could have expected to receive £16 million, but
outperformed this expectation. The investment awarded, per-capita rate, was
comparable with the big cities including Manchester and Liverpool.

3.11

Government reviewed the LEP’s submission and concluded on an award that would
enable it to deliver the top three prioritised projects in their submission. In particular,
Government was keen to support the Cyber Business Park due to its fit with
national priorities.

3.12

The top three projects funded were:




Cyber Park: £22 million
Longford Housing: £4.53 million
Forest of Dean Campus: £2.6 million

Page 63

3.13

Gloucester City Council’s submission was 5th in the list of priorities and as a
consequence did not secure funding. It is worth noting that Gloucester will benefit
from the first two projects, as people from the city are likely to work at the Cyber
Park and although the highways improvements fall within Tewkesbury Borough,
they are on the city’s boundary and help to enable our housing needs to be met. It
is also worth noting that the city’s previous bids for Growth Deal funding for the bus
station (£4.7 million) and Blackfriars (£4.13 million) were both awarded in full.

3.14 Following the announcement of the GD3 programme, including confirmation that the
City Council’s bid was not successful, Officers and the Leader of the Council met
with the GFirst CEO David Owen, to in the first instance express our disappointment
that our bid had not been successful, although the LEP had performed well in
attracting significant funds to the sub region, and to consider ways forward. At the
meeting the CEO made it quite clear that in his opinion, and that of the LEP Board,
it was one of the best bids submitted. It was only beaten by a scoring mechanism
which favoured those projects that had greater outputs and delivered nationally
significant priorities.
4.0

Lessons Learned

4.1

The inclusion of the footbridge was an innovative move supported by partners and
helped to underline the economic benefits of strong pedestrian links between Great
Western Road, particularly the identified housing sites and Gloucestershire Royal
Hospital, and the city centre. It is thanks to its inclusion, and the comprehensive
approach to the submission which undoubtedly gave the city the best opportunity to
secure funding.

4.2

That Officers are still able to have ongoing discussions with the LEP, to identify
ways in which they are able to help us to deliver this scheme is testament to the
approach taken and is not a position many of those who were also unsuccessful are
finding themselves in. That said, competition for any future funding rounds will still
be highly competitive.

4.3

Even reflecting on the process and the outcome, being prioritised as 5 out of 11 and
the top three receiving money based on priorities that are getting extensive interest
at a national level, it is difficult to see what could have been done differently. It was
a comprehensive bid, made in partnership with other public sector bodies and the
private sector. Through a competitive process you cannot always expect success,
the key is to be tenacious and keep pressing the case and the benefits. This is
something Officers will continue to do, working closely with the LEP.

4.4

Subject to Members confirming the resolution of this report, Officers will continue to
seek funding to deliver the improvements around the station. However the bridge
will not form part of those proposals in view of the amount of funding that is likely to
be available. The proposed project is likely to focus primarily on the delivery of
improvements to the subway and connectivity to the city centre.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

The options considered included:
1)

Not to submit a bid: this would not have delivered any regeneration benefits
Page 64

2)

Submit the original bid without incorporating the comments of the LEP: this is
likely to have radically reduced the impact of the project and consequently its
potential success

3)

Submit an enhanced bid that responds to comments made: this was
deemed the most appropriate way forward that responded to concerns and
prepared a bid that had the maximum opportunity to deliver the growth
potential.

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

To continue to pursue and secure investment to improve the environment in and
around the railway station.

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

A revised and updated bid will be required that meets any changes in criteria set out
by the LEP and also changes on the ground. GWR have already started to invest in
the car park and the City Council has acquired Wessex House, to enable the
delivery of subway improvements.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

No comment
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

No comment
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

10.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
10.1 The recommendations offer an opportunity to improve the appearance and
attractiveness of the area around the railway station and improved connectivity
between the city centre and the hospital where over 6,000 people are employed.
11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

There are no direct community safety implications.
Sustainability
Page 65

12.2

There are no direct sustainability issues.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

There are no direct staffing implications.

Background Documents:

None

Page 66

Agenda Item 13

Date:

21st June 2017

Meeting:

Cabinet

Subject:

Policy options to improve the conditions in privately
rented properties

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Julie Wight, Private Sector Housing Manager

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: Julie.wight@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

ext

No
x 6320

None

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To respond to the motion raised in the Council meeting of the 1/12/16, for Cabinet
to consider introducing a Selective Licensing Scheme for landlords in parts of the
city where the quality of private rented accommodation falls below an acceptable
level

1.2

To explain the criteria and process required in implementing discretionary HMO
licensing.

1.3

To review other policy options to ensure that landlords provide decent, safe and
secure housing conditions for people to live in.

1.4

To recommend policy options for implementation of these other enforcement
interventions.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

A further report be brought to Cabinet towards the end of 2018
recommending whether or not additional HMO licensing should be
implemented in Gloucester and recommending the implementation of other
policy options detailed in this report.

(2)

A policy for the implementation of fixed penalty notices for housing act
offences be developed within the next six months.

(3)

The investigation for the case for a discretionary licensing scheme is
postponed until 2018 which will be after the extended mandatory HMO
licensing scheme has been implemented.

(4)

A policy for the implementation of fixed penalty notices be agreed with the
relevant Cabinet Member within the next six months.
Page 67

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

The policy and procedure for implementing a discretionary licensing scheme

3.2

The Housing Act 2004 makes it a requirement for all Local Authorities to licence
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO’s) which are three storeys or above and
accommodate five or more tenants. This mandatory scheme is the only scheme
currently being operated in Gloucester and to date we have 211 licensed HMO’s.

3.3

This legislation also gives Local Authorities the power to implement either additional
or selective discretionary licensing schemes where the prescribed conditions exist
to warrant such action:

Additional licensing. This enables the Local Authority to designate specific areas
or the whole of their area to an HMO licensing scheme that goes beyond that of
the mandatory scheme, where there is a significant proportion of the HMO’s in
that area that are being managed ineffectively.



Selective licensing. This can be used for all private rented properties (not just
HMO’s) in an area where there is low housing demand and/or high levels of antisocial behaviour.

3.4

However, before either of these schemes can be implemented the Local Authority
will have to be able to demonstrate that the designation in combination with other
measures would lead to a reduction in or elimination of the problem that has given
rise to the need to introduce the scheme.

3.5

Before making a decision to designate an area for discretionary licensing, the
authority must consider whether there are alternative means of addressing the
issues, for example, through the introduction of a voluntary accreditation scheme for
landlords or by the use of the range of enforcement tools it has at its’ disposal. It
must also ensure that any proposed licensing scheme fits with its overall housing
strategy and its policies on homelessness and empty dwellings.

3.6

The legislation allows Local Authorities to design a scheme according to their
specific requirements and can be used to specify types of HMO’s and/or the
numbers of occupants. For example, Oxford City Council require all HMO’s
(regardless of size and number of occupants) to be licensed, whereas Brighton and
Hove have designated a specific area in which HMO’s of two or more storeys with 3
or more tenants have to be licensed.

3.7

Before a discretionary licensing scheme can be implemented, a minimum
consultation period of 10 weeks is required and should include local residents;
tenants; landlords; managing agents and other members of the community who live
or operate businesses or services in the proposed designated area.

3.8

In the meantime, the Government has recently announced that they intend to
extend mandatory licencing to all HMO’s with five or more tenants (i.e. to include all
two storey HMO’s). They are suggesting at this stage that Local Authorities will
have discretion as to whether they will apply across the whole of their area or to
specific areas.

Page 68

3.9

Review of other enforcement options

3.10 The Housing Act 2004 provides local authorities with enforcement tools to improve
private rented properties that are based on the severity of risk that the property
presents. These can be anyone of the following interventions:

Hazard awareness notice, lowest level of intervention and merely raises the
existence of a low risk hazard(s) to the Landlord.



Improvement notice, requires the Landlord to carry out remedial work to address
higher risk hazards.



Prohibition Notice, this prohibits the further use of a property or part of a property
from residential occupation when the risk cannot be mitigated.



Emergency Remedial Action which is used to immediately remedy a hazard that is
of imminent risk



Breach of Management Regulations, this applies only to HMO’s and gives the
council ability to prosecute landlords who fail to adequately manage their properties.

3.11

Failure to comply with the above (apart from the hazard awareness notice) can
result in further enforcement such as simple cautions, prosecutions and/or work in
default.

3.12 More recently, the Housing and Planning Act 2016.has added the ability to issue
fixed penalty notices for Housing Act 2004 offences with a maximum financial
penalty of £30,000/offence. This act will also enable local authorities to issue
Banning Orders for the very worst Landlords and also makes provision for local
authorities to develop a Rogue Landlord database for sharing of information
between local authorities.
3.13

The case for Gloucester

3.14

In December 2014, an Overview and Scrutiny Task And Finish Group initiated
actions to improve housing conditions in the private rented sector. The Task and
Finish group concluded with a report to Council recommending the continuation of
the proactive HMO inspection and intervention work. This ongoing programme is
discovering that the conditions for discretionary licencing may exist, particularly in
certain areas of the city.

3.15

Quantifiable evidence would be needed to support the hypothesis that we do have
areas where discretionary licensing would be beneficial, therefore an HMO
condition survey would need to be carried out. The survey would examine:-

3.16



Numbers and size of HMO’s



Numbers of tenants in the properties



Condition and management of the properties



Levels of anti-social behaviour in the area

Seven prosecutions have been brought against Landlords since the implementation
of the proactive HMO inspection programme. Prosecutions are expensive and time
intensive and whilst the costs are normally recovered, the fine is not received by the
Page 69

local authority. The ability to use fixed penalty notices as an alternative to
prosecution is welcomed, not only will they be less resource intensive, the fine will
be an income to the local authority. Importantly, it will also motivate landlords to
comply with their statutory responsibilities more expediently.
4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

Communities benefit from well managed rented accommodation and the health
benefits from good quality homes is well documented. Within the county, the link
between health and housing is made in the Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing
Strategy 2012-2032 which tracks, county wide, the number of category 1 housing
hazards that have been eliminated by the actions of local authority intervention.
This, in turn, makes quantifiable savings to the NHS by preventing a hazard from
resulting in ill health. Residents, businesses and landlords in an area also have a
role in ensuring the improvements are sustained, if a discretionary licensing scheme
is to be introduced in the future, the consultation process will be used to ask
stakeholders their opinions as to how the community can help the council maintain
standards.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

Gloucester currently has a voluntary accreditation scheme for student
accommodation. A scheme to cover all private rented properties, called Fit to Rent,
was implemented in 2010 and although it was free to landlords, it did not attract
many landlords and therefore an extension of the existing scheme as an option, can
be discounted as an alternative to a licensing scheme.

5.2

The Council can choose not to implement the new provisions in the Housing and
Planning Act 2016, however, it will then lose the opportunity to recover the income
from fixed penalty notices and the ability to impose the additional restrictions on the
very worst landlords. Therefore, this option is not recommended.

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

As the Government are about to extend mandatory licensing, it is recommended
that any plans to investigate the case for discretionary licensing scheme are
postponed until the extended mandatory scheme has been implemented and we
are clear on how the changes will affect Gloucester. The extended scheme may
cover all the HMO’s that are a cause for concern and consequently, the introduction
of a discretionary scheme at this stage may result in unnecessary expense and
work.

6.2

The ability to issue fixed penalty notices will provide an expedient method to ensure
landlords comply with legislation relating to rented accommodation

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

Gloucester city council has around 800 HMO’s of which around 250 are licensable
under the current mandatory licensing scheme. Government proposals to extend
the mandatory scheme will encompass significantly more HMO’s but will not include
all HMO’s for example, those with less than five tenants. There are areas of the city
where the condition and management of HMO’s falls below acceptable standards
and it is possible that this extended scheme will not improve all of the HMO’s in
these areas.

Page 70

7.2

The extended mandatory licensing scheme is expected to be implemented in the
autumn of 2017. During the first year of the extended scheme, the effects on the
management of the HMO stock in the city will be monitored and used to identify any
areas or types of housing that would benefit from additional licensing provisions.
The details will be included in a report to Cabinet towards the end of 2018.

7.3

The costs involved in implementing a discretionary licensing scheme will be
investigated and included in the report to Cabinet in 2018.

7.4

The ability to serve fixed penalty notices for housing act offences, is already in
force, however the government guidance on how local authorities should develop a
policy for determining the appropriate level of penalty has only recently been
published. This policy should now be developed within the next six months in
consultation with the Senior Management Team and the Cabinet Member for
Housing and Planning.

7.5

The regulations that will set out the framework for banning orders and a rogue
landlord database is expected to be in force towards the end of 2017, however,
guidance is expected to be issued prior to implantation and will provide the basis for
a policy and/or procedure to be developed in the future.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

The costs involved in implementing a discretionary licensing scheme relate to
staffing and carrying out an HMO survey.

8.2

Cheltenham Borough Council recently researched the costs for an HMO survey and
received quotations in the region of £100k. In addition to this cost, a temporary staff
resource would be required to commission this HMO survey; analyse survey
results; carry out a stakeholder consultation exercise and implement the licencing
regime. It is estimated that a 0.5 FTE would be required for around one year at a
cost of around £18,000. Therefore it is estimated that a budget of around £118,000
would be required to investigate and set up any discretionary licensing scheme.

8.3

The permanent staff resource that would be required to administer the licencing
regime would be recovered from the licencing fee income.

8.4

A fixed penalty regime for failure to comply with Housing Act offences will bring in
additional income to the Council.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

The discretionary licensing provisions are found in part 2 of the Housing Act 2004

9.2

The ability to issue fixed penalty notices; to introduce a rogue landlord database
and implement banning orders are found in the Housing and Planning Act 2016
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.

10.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
10.1

There are no key risks identified in the recommendations of this report.

Page 71

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

Anti-social behaviour is often linked to landlords and tenants of poorly managed and
overcrowded HMO’s. A licensing regime ensures the properties are regularly
inspected and issues related to poor management can be addressed.
Sustainability

12.2

Well maintained private rented properties help to support sustainable and cohesive
communities.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

None

Potential Media Interest – to be completed for SMT/Cabinet Briefing purposes. Remove
prior to publication of report. Draft report to be sent pressoff@gloucestershire.gov.uk.

Background Documents:
designations in England.

Approval steps for additional and selective licensing

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20120919132719/http:/www.communities.gov.uk
/documents/housing/pdf/154091.pdf
Housing and Planning Act 2016
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/22/pdfs/ukpga_20160022_en.pdf

Page 72

Agenda Item 14

Meeting:

Audit and Governance Committee
Cabinet

Subject:

Treasury Management Update – Annual Report 2016/17

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jon Topping, Head of Finance

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jon.topping@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

19 June 2017
21 June 2017

No
Tel: 396242

1. Prudential and Treasury Indicators
2. Interest rate forecasts

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual
prudential and treasury indicators for 2016/17. This report meets the requirements
of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, (the Code), and the
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, (the Prudential
Code.

1.2

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore,
important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury
activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved
by members.

1.3

This report will highlight issues specific to the Council and also highlight interest rate
forecasts as provided by the Council’s treasury advisors Capita Asset Services.

1.4

The body of the report provides an overview of the Councils performance for
2016/17;



Appendix 1 highlights the key performance indicators in line with the
Councils Treasury Management Strategy.
Appendix 2 Interest Rate Forecast.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Audit and Governance Committee is asked, subject to any recommendations it
wishes to make to Cabinet, to note the contents of the report.
Page 73

2.2

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that the contents of the report be noted.

3.0

Annual Investment Strategy
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2016/17, which includes
the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 24th March 2016.
It sets out the Council’s investment priorities as being:


Security of capital;



Liquidity; and



Yield

3.1

The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current economic
climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash
flow needs, but also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months, with
highly credit rated financial institutions, using our suggested creditworthiness
approach, including a minimum sovereign credit rating, and Credit Default Swap
(CDS) overlay information.

3.2

Investment rates available in the market were broadly stable during the year
continuing at historically low levels as a result of the ultra-low Bank Rate. The
Council maintained an average balance of £7.4M internally managed funds. The
comparable performance indicator is the average 7-day LIBID rate, which was
0.20%. The Council investment funds were available on a temporary basis, and the
level of funds available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments,
receipt of grants and progress on the Capital Programme. The Council does not
hold cash balances for investment purposes (i.e. funds available for more than one
month).
Investment performance for the financial year 2016/2017
Benchmark

Benchmark Return

Council Performance

Investment Interest Earned

7 day

0.20

0.28

£21k

3 month

0.32

N/A

N/A

As illustrated, the Council outperformed the benchmark by 0.08 bps.

Page 74

1.00

Apr 2016 - Mar 2017 Bank Rate vs LIBID rates %

0.90
0.80
0.70
0.60

0.50
0.40
0.30
0.20

0.10
0.00

Bank Rate

7 day

1 mth

3 mth

6 mth

12 mth

4.0

New Borrowing

4.1

As depicted in the graph below, there has been major volatility in PLWB rates
during 2016/17. Rates fell during quarters 1 and 2 to reach historically very low
levels in July and August, before rising significantly during quarter 3, and then
partially easing back towards the end of the year.

4.2

No long term borrowing was undertaken during the period.

4.3

PWLB certainty rates, for the financial year to the 31st March 2017

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

25 Year

50 Year

1/4/16

1.13%

1.62%

2.31%

3.14%

2.95%

31/3/17

0.83%

1.24%

1.60%

1.80%

2.07%

Low

0.76%

0.95%

1.42%

2.08%

1.87%

Date

20/12/2016

10/08/2016

10/08/2016

12/08/2016

30/08/2016

High

1.20%

1.80%

2.51%

3.28%

3.08%

Date

27/04/2016

27/04/2016

27/04/2016

27/04/2016

27/04/2016

Page 75

0.93%

Average

3.50%

1.36%

2.01%

2.72%

2.49%

Apr 2016 - Mar 2017 PWLB Maturity Certainty Rates

3.00%

2.50%

2.00%

1.50%

1.00%

0.50%

1 Year

4.4

5 Year

10 Year

25 Year

50 Year

50 year target %

Borrowing in advance of need.
The Council has not borrowed in advance of need during the period ended 31st
March 2017.

5.0

Debt Rescheduling

5.1

During the year ended 31st March 2017, no debt rescheduling was undertaken.

6.0

Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits

6.1

It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the
affordable borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential
Indicators (affordability limits) are included in the approved TMSS.

6.2

During the financial year the Council has operated within the treasury limits set out
in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and in compliance with
the Council's Treasury Management Practices. The Council debt profile is currently
structured on short term borrowing. The Council is able to benefit from reduced
costs associated with short term borrowing compared to longer term rates while
operating within the Councils borrowing requirements, this strategy will continue to
Page 76

be reviewed in line with market expectations.
Indicators are shown within appendix 1.

The prudential and treasury

7.0

Other

7.1

The Council continued to maintain an under-borrowed position in 2016/17.

7.2

This under-borrowing reflects that the Council resources such as reserves and
provisions will have reduced debt rather than be externally invested. This strategy is
sensible, at this point in time, for two reasons. Firstly, there is no differential
between the marginal borrowing rate and investment rate so there is nothing to be
gained by investing Council resources externally. Secondly, by using the resources
to reduce debt the Council will reduce exposure to investment counterparty risk.

7.3

The Council will continue to monitor its approach to under borrowing in light of
market movement and future events.

7.4

The Council has utilised short term borrowing in 2016/17 as part of its overall
borrowing strategy, this policy has allowed the Council to benefit from lower interest
rates available over the short term, reducing borrowing costs significantly in the
short term. Over our current 2016/17 borrowing requirement, the Council has been
able to obtain short term borrowing at 0.33% compared to current long term rates at
1.60% for 10 year. Over this period the policy has reduced annual borrowing costs
by £190k.

7.5

The Council will continue to monitor its approach to short term borrowing in
accordance with our treasury advisor forecasts and future Council events which
impact on the Council borrowing requirement.

8.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

8.1

This report notes the treasury management performance of the Council. There are
no anticipated ABCD implications from this report.

9.0

Financial Implications

9.1

Contained in the report
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

10.0

Legal Implications

10.1

There are no legal implications from this report
(Legal Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

11.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

11.1

There are no specific risks or opportunities as a result of this report
Page 77

12.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

12.1

A PIA screening assessment has been undertaken and the impact is neutral. A full
PIA is not required.

13.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

13.1 None
Sustainability
13.2 None
Staffing & Trade Union
13.3 None

Page 78

Appendix 1
Prudential and Treasury Indicators as at 31st March 2017

2016/17 Budget
£’000

Annual (Apr-Mar)
Actual
£’000

Authorised limit for external debt

£30M

£30M

Operational boundary for external debt

£25M

£25M

Gross external debt

£25M

£19.5M

N/A

£0M

£25M

£19.5M

Under 12 months

0% - 100%

74.36%

12 months to 2 years

0% - 100%

0%

2 years to 5 years

0% - 100%

0%

5 years to 10 years

0% - 100%

25.64%

10 years to 20 years

0% - 100%

0%

20 years to 30 years

0% - 100%

0%

30 years to 40 years

0% - 100%

0%

40 years to 50 years

0% - 100%

0%

Upper limit of fixed interest rates based on net debt

100%

74.36%

Upper limit of variable interest rates based on net
debt

100%

25.64.%

Treasury Indicators

Investments
Net borrowing

Maturity structure of fixed and variable rate
borrowing - upper and lower limits

Page 79

Appendix 2
INTEREST RATES FORECASTS
The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following
forecast:

The Monetary Policy Committee, (MPC), cut Bank Rate from 0.50% to 0.25% on 4th
August 2016 in order to counteract what it forecast was going to be a sharp slowdown
in growth in the second half of 2016. At that juncture, it also gave a strong steer that it
was likely to cut Bank Rate again by the end of 2016. However, since August, growth
has been robust; also, inflation forecasts have risen substantially as a result of the
sharp fall in the value of sterling since the referendum. Consequently, Bank Rate has
not been cut again, and, on current trends, it now appears unlikely that there will be
another cut. Nevertheless, that cannot be completely ruled out if there was a
significant dip downwards in economic growth. During the two-year period 2017 –
2019, when the UK is negotiating the terms for withdrawal from the EU, it is unlikely
that the MPC will do anything to dampen growth prospects, (i.e. by raising Bank Rate),
which will already be adversely impacted by the uncertainties of what form Brexit will
eventually take. Accordingly, a first increase to 0.50% is not tentatively pencilled in,
as in the table above, until quarter 2 2019, after those negotiations have been
concluded, (though the period for negotiations could be extended). However, if strong
domestically generated inflation, (e.g. from wage increases within the UK), were to
emerge, then the pace and timing of increases in Bank Rate could be brought forward.

Page 80

Agenda Item 15

Date:

12th June 2017
21st June 2017

Meeting:

Overview and Scrutiny
Cabinet

Subject:

Financial Outturn 2016/17

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Andrew Cummings, Management Accountant

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email:Andrew.cummings@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No
Tel: 396231

1. Progress against savings targets
2. Capital Outturn

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To inform members of the final Council position against agreed budgets for the
2016/17 financial year. This includes a summary of how the Council has
progressed against key savings targets for the year. It also highlights some key
performance indicators.

1.2

For Cabinet to note the final outturn position and to approve movement to and from
earmarked revenue reserves.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Overview & Scrutiny Committee is asked to, subject to any recommendations it
wishes to make to Cabinet, to note the contents of the report.

2.2

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that
1. it be noted that:
i.

The savings achieved in year total £590k

ii.

The year-end position for the financial year 2016/17 is to increase the
Council’s General Fund balance by £20k

iii.

The General Fund balance has increased from £1.635m to £1.655m at the
end of 2016/17.

iv.

That this change in the General Fund balance is after a transfer to
earmarked reserves of £692k

v.

That the business rates pool has returned a surplus of £329k to the City
Council.
Page 81

2. The transfers to and from earmarked reserves as below and detailed in section 8 of
this report be APPROVED
3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

This report is intended to give Members a clear and concise view of the 2016/17
outturn of the Council. The financial position for each portfolio is presented in a
summary table.

3.2

The reported position in Quarter 3 was to decrease the general fund by £109k and
increase earmarked reserves by £100k. The final outturn position is to increase the
general fund by £20k and increase earmarked reserves by £692k. This is a
significant improvement from Quarter 3 and relates to an increase in retained
business rates (See Section 11). The closing General Fund is now £1.655 million.

3.3

The Council has a financial strategy to place funds into earmarked reserves where
appropriate. This report includes details of proposed reserve transfers to bring the
year-end balance on earmarked reserves to £4.269 million.

3.4

The savings target for 2016/17 was £607k. A further £566k of savings unachieved
in 2015/16 was added to that target to give an overall savings target of £1.173
million. Savings actually achieved total £590k. Where savings targets have not
been achieved these will be delivered in 2017/18, with the exception of the £50k
savings targets for Shopmobility and the Markets which were removed in the
2017/18 Money Plan. Section 13 and Appendix 1 provide further details.

4.0

Whole Council Summary

4.1

A summary table below shows the outturn position for each service area. As with
all budget monitoring from 2016/17 this is reported by Cabinet Portfolio.

Council Summary

16/17 Budget

£000
£000
(906)
(718)
1,147
1,009
5,128
5,338
1,486
1,655
1,705
2,045
4,200
4,188
(12,759) (13,957)
0
420
0
(20)

Regeneration and Economy
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Performance and Resources
Culture
Planning and Housing
Environment
Corporate and Funding
Transfer to Business Rates Reserve
Total

4.2

Final
Actual

Final
Variance
£000
188
(138)
210
169
340
(12)
(1,198)
420
(20)

The large saving in Corporate and Funding relates to retained Business Rates.
This is due to a reduction in the levy paid to Central Government as a result of
overall falling income levels which need to be recovered from the revenue budget in
future years. This saving is to be placed in a reserve to protect the General Fund
from fluctuations in rates in future years.
Page 82

4.3

The slight increase in General Fund along with the increased balance of earmarked
reserves is a significant achievement against a background of significant saving
targets. The increase in reserves will help to mitigate the impact of further
reductions in funding in future years.

5.0

Regeneration and Economy

Regen

16/17 Budget
£000
402
1,021
(1,630)
(825)
375
(249)
(906)

Economic Development
Asset Management
Commercial Property
Parking
Senior Management
Markets and Street Trading
Total

Final
Final
Actual
Variance
£000
£000
335
(67)
1,138
117
(1,541)
89
(936)
(111)
347
(28)
(61)
188
(718)
188

5.1

This portfolio has a year end deficit of £188k. This is a change from Quarter 3
when a slight underspend was predicted.

5.2

Throughout the year it has been forecast that Markets and Street Trading Service
would create a budgetary pressure as a result of falling income and a £50k savings
target. In Quarter 4 the income fell even further than expected and increased the
level of the budget shortfall at the end of the year. In 2017/18 the Markets will fall
under the new Cultural and Trading Services team which will look at ways to
increase income achieved. In addition the 2017/18 Money Plan removes the
savings target to ease the budget pressure in the upcoming financial year.

5.3

The overall income from Commercial Property was lower than budgeted. This is
partly due to a reduced number of units generating income around the Bus Station
Development as was anticipated at this stage. However, the Council continues to
generate returns from Commercial Property and where necessary will explore new
opportunities to build on the property portfolio to deliver both commercial returns
and regeneration outcomes.

5.4

Within the Asset Management service, budgets for repairs and maintenance and
property service charges were exceeded overall. However, these costs can be met
from resources within the overall revenue outturn and it is not proposed to draw on
the repairs reserve. That reserve can therefore be left in place at the full £400k to
fund major repairs works in future years.

5.5

The budget surplus achieved within parking for the year was a result of a backdated
appeal on business rates for Castlemeads car park being received. This was a
significant source of income in year but was primarily a one-off item.

6.0

Communities and Neighbourhoods
Page 83

Communities and Neigbourhoods

16/17 Budget
£000

Voluntary Sector Grants
Community Strategy and Other Projects
Licensing
Environmental Health
Health and Safety
Shopmobility
Total

315
320
(89)
408
187
6
1,147

Final
Actual
£000
290
259
(103)
362
144
57
1,009

Final
Variance
£000
(25)
(61)
(14)
(46)
(43)
51
(138)

6.1

This portfolio has generated a saving of £138k for the 2016/17 year. This is an
increase on the underspend forecast at Quarter 3. Where future agreed
commitments have been made these sums have been placed in reserves. Further
details on these reserves is provided in Section 12.

6.2

The Shopmobility Service was over budget for the year by £51k. This is a direct
result of no suitable third party partners being able to operate the service and
deliver the budgeted saving of £50k. As it has been decided to continue operating
the service on an in house basis, at least in the short term, this savings target has
been removed from 2017/18 and the service should operate on budget.

6.3

All other parts of the portfolio have delivered a number of savings against the
budget. This was previously predicted and reported and is the direct result of a
significant number of vacancies being held across the portfolio as a result of staff
departures throughout the year. Each service area, with the exception of
Shopmobility, held at least one vacancy during the year.

7.0

Performance and Resources

Performance and Resources
Internal Audit
Housing Subsidy
Revenues and Benefits Admin
Financial and Corporate
IT
Human Resources
Communications
Legal Services
Contact Centre and Customer Services
Democratic Services
Total

Final
Final
16/17 Budget Actual
Variance
£000
£000
£000
177
202
25
(479)
(556)
(77)
663
611
(52)
1,091
1,229
138
1,418
1,621
203
314
325
11
125
96
(29)
370
360
(10)
691
683
(8)
758
767
9
5,128
5,338
210

Page 84

7.1

This portfolio recorded an overspend of £210k. The cause of this is a provision that
the Council has had to put in place for a potential IT cost of £175k. These costs are
shown against the IT service area. Within the rest of the portfolio there were some
service areas which recorded adverse variances but these were balanced out other
savings.

7.2

The biggest change was additional cost incurred in the area of financial services
and corporate expenditure. This resulted from adjustments which became apparent
as part of year-end procedures. The first is that the Council made a contribution to
the Insurance provision of £40k more than budgeted. The Council sets aside
money each year end in order to meet the cost of insurance claims against the
authority. It is good accounting practice to review the provision at least annually
and this has led to this additional charge. Also, a creditor has come to light relating
to costs incurred when the Council still had ownership of housing stock. This debt
has been settled but as the Council no longer operates a housing revenue account
the cost must be met from the General Fund.

7.3

With the exception of the provision noted at 7.1, IT revenue expenditure has been
largely contained within budget for the 2016/17 year. Significant work has taken
place in the year to correctly account for and monitor expenditure in this area. The
final outturn position has been assisted by identifying a credit to be claimed at the
end of the current Council photocopying contract.

7.4

The final cost of providing Housing Benefit was slightly more than had been
predicted at Quarter 3. It has been previously reported that small changes in this
area can have a significant impact on the Council budget. In spite of this change
the service still produced an underspend of £77k.

8.0

Culture and Leisure

Culture and Leisure
Museums
Guildhall
TIC
Aspire Client
Marketing Gloucester
Total

Final
Final
16/17 Budget Actual
Variance
£000
£000
£000
192
303
111
239
300
61
163
173
10
428
427
(1)
464
452
(12)
1,486
1,655
169

8.1

Previous monitoring reports had highlighted that an overspend was expected within
this area and this can be confirmed at year end with an outturn variance of £169k
being the final position.

8.2

The Museums service was able to achieve only approximately £21k of the budgeted
£132k of savings which remains a target for the Service. However, it should be
recognised that there has been a significant improvement in the financial
performance during year. During 2015/16 the service incurred an overspend of
Page 85

approximately £50k on top of budgeted savings. This year therefore represents an
improvement of over £70k. The majority of this relates to the success of the
“Robots” exhibition in Summer 2016. Lessons have been learnt from this exhibition
about how to turn increased football into increased income and this will lead to a
greater contribution towards financial targets from future exhibitions.
8.3

The Guildhall again made in-year progress against the savings target of £150k
which the service was set in previous years. This year has not seen the same
increase in income as previous years but further opportunities will be explored in
2017/18 to deliver even more of the savings.

8.4

Budgets at the Tourist Information Centre have largely been met with only a small
overspend reported at the end of the year.

8.5

These three areas are expected to benefit in 2017/18 from the introduction of a new
Cultural and Trading Services team as part of the Together Gloucester restructure.
This will allow staff to work across sites, generate efficiencies and more effectively
co-ordinate the promotion of exhibitions and events. This is likely to have a
significant positive impact on the financial position once the new team is operating
effectively.

8.6

A small underspend was recorded against Marketing Gloucester as the Council
received a credit for grant funding already paid to Marketing Gloucester in 2015/16
which was to be met from the 2016/17 allocation. All other items of expenditure in
relation to Marketing Gloucester remained within budget.

9.0

Planning and Housing

Planning and Housing
Housing Strategy
Private Sector Housing
Planning
Homelessness
Total

Final
Final
16/17 Budget Actual
Variance
£000
£000
£000
147
145
(2)
339
295
(44)
474
638
164
745
967
222
1,705
2,045
340

9.1

This portfolio saw an overspend in year of £340k which is the impact of the
significant increase in the demand for temporary accommodation and overspends
within Planning. All other services within the Portfolio were delivered on or under
budget.

9.2

It has previously been reported at Quarter 3 that increased costs had been incurred
in Planning as a result of a Planning Appeal. These totalled £84k at the end of the
financial year. In addition to these costs the Joint Core Strategy and City Plan work
exceeded budgets during the year as a result of expenditure on external experts
These costs were over budget by £36k.

Page 86

9.3

Income from planning fees fell short not only of the predictions at Quarter 2 and 3
but also of the budget for the year creating an additional pressure of £23k on the
service. There was a significant downturn in income received during the fourth
quarter. Income will be closely monitored during 2017/18 to determine if this
quarter was part of a consistent downward trend which would place further pressure
on the Service.

9.4

The Homelessness Service saw a significant increase in the cost of temporary
accommodation during the financial year. This has caused a budgetary pressure as
the Council is limited in the amount of expenditure it is able to reclaim through the
Housing Subsidy system. The use of temporary accommodation therefore largely
falls against Council budgets and has caused this overspend. The level of
budgetary gap is higher than predicted at Quarter 3 as the costs continued to
increase during the final quarter.

10.0

Environment

Environment
Waste and Streetcare
Neighbourhood Management
Countryside and Allotments
Cemetery and Crematorium
Flooding and emergency planning
Head of Service
Total

Final
Final
16/17 Budget Actual
Variance
£000
£000
£000
4,794
5,052
258
49
42
(7)
117
103
(14)
(964) (1,210)
(246)
133
132
(1)
71
69
(2)
4,200
4,188
(12)

10.1

The final position on this portfolio is that a breakeven was achieved, even
generating a small surplus of £12k. As has been reported previously the position in
the portfolio is one of contrasts with significant overspends being matched
elsewhere in the portfolio by large underspends.

10.2

The successful launch of the revised Recycling Service in January 2017 is likely to
lead delivering the savings targets in future years. The savings from the new
system come from the sale of the additional recycling material collected. As the
service was introduced towards the end of the financial year, and as a result of the
lead times for the sale of material, there has been no impact on the savings target
in 2016/17. Any additional income which has been created has largely offset
implementation costs incurred. However, savings identified elsewhere within Waste
and Streetcare have helped to mitigate the impact and a final overspend of £258k
was recorded.

10.3 The Cemetery and Crematorium service significantly overachieved the income
targets for the year resulting in a final surplus of £246k. This is likely to be a result
of the new charging structure introduced during the year. This surplus has offset
the overspend in Waste and Streetcare. An additional income target of £150k was
added to this service for 2017/18 to build these higher levels of income into the
Council’s base budget.

Page 87

11.0

Business Rates and Business Rates Pooling

11.1

The retention of Non-Domestic Rates continues to form a key component of the
Councils’ financial position.

11.2

The level of Business Rates collected has been less than expected during 2016/17.
This is largely due to the impact of successful appeals by Businesses against their
rating valuation assign by the Valuation Office Agency. This shortfall of rates
creates a deficit in the Council’s Collection Fund which effectively records the
running balance between rates collected and rates received. This deficit must be
charged against the Council’s revenue budget in future years and will form part of
the Council’s long term forecast of Business Rates within the Money Plan.

11.3

A portion of rates collected is paid over to Central Government in the form of a levy.
The reduction in rates collected this year creates a one off saving in year. This
saving is proposed to be placed into the Business Rates Reserve. It can then be
used to offset the reduction in Business Rates retention created by the Collection
Fund deficit.

11.4

In addition to the impact on the Council’s own budget the Council is a member of
the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool (GBRP). The pooling mechanism shares
the risk of fluctuating rates around the County and also allows an overall reduction
in the combined levy payment which is made to Central Government. That
reduction increases the amount of business rates retained within Gloucestershire
and is shared amongst the member authorities.

11.5

The pool has declared a surplus in 2016/17 and the share due back to Gloucester
City is £329k. This is divided into two portions. The first is a repayment to the
Council of £172k for the amount it paid to cover the deficit at Tewkesbury in
2014/15. This is returned to the General Fund which was used to pay that deficit at
the time. The remainder of £157k is included in the £420k transfer proposed to the
Business Rates Reserve to be drawn down upon to support the revenue budget in
future years.

12. 0 Reserve Movement
12.1

The table below shows the proposed transfers to and from reserves along with
balances on all other reserves. In the 2016/17 year there are proposed transfers to
and from a number of existing reserves as well as the proposed establishment of
six additional earmarked reserves. Details of the major movements, and the new
reserves are below.
No

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Reserve

Opening
Balance
£’000

3 Choirs Reserve
Historic Buildings Reserve
Portfolio Reserve(Housing Survey)
Members Allocation Reserve
Shopmobility Reserve
Regeneration Reserve
Insurance reserve

Page 88

5
53
36
9
29
510
10

Proposed
Transfer
£’000
(5)
0
13
(5)
0
42
0

Closing
Balance
£’000
0
53
49
4
29
552
10

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Land Adoptions Reserve
VAT Shelter Reserve
Business Rates Reserve
Trading Development Reserve
Environment
Reserve
(Stock
transfer)
Pension Liability Reserve (Stock
Transfer)
Repairs Reserve
Community Builder Reserve
Planning Grant Reserve
Economic Development Reserve
Flooding Works Reserve
Meet and Greet Reserve
Police Contribution Reserve
Total Earmarked Reserves

710
291
200
50

171
222
420
0

881
513
620
50

1,000

0

1,000

275

(275)

0

400
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,577

0
30
30
20
10
4
15
692

400
30
30
20
10
4
15
4,269

12.2

The Regeneration reserve holds the surplus of income generated by the former
South West Regional Development Agency (SWRDA) assets and is used to fund
regeneration projects within the City. There has been expenditure funded from the
income generated during the year but it is still possible to transfer an additional
£42k to the opening balance.

12.3

There has been no expenditure incurred against the VAT Shelter Reserve. A
further £222k of income has been received and it is proposed to transfer this
balance in its entirety for use in future projects. A majority of the funds available
have been earmarked for the project at Black Dog Way.

12.4

The Pension liability created as a result of the stock transfer has now been settled
and the Reserve of £275k can now be released to fund that settlement.

12.5

Two additional sums have been received from developers upon the Council
adopting land during the financial year. That is transferred in full to the Land
Adoptions Reserve. Funding which has been received in prior years has been
partly drawn down to meet associated ground maintenance costs. The net position
is a transfer to the reserve of £171k.

12.6

It is proposed to add £420k to the Business Rates Reserve. This reserve will be
drawn down upon in future years should the level of business rates raised be less
than expected in the Money Plan. This is likely as a result of the 2016/17 NNDR
collected being below budgeted levels.

12.7

The new reserves created all represent surplus funds, either grant funded or from
Council budgets, which have been earmarked for expenditure in future years. The
Community Builder Reserve is an unspent budget which will be used to fund the
cost of a Community Builder post with partners. The Planning Grant Reserve
relates to Government grants to fund specific planning projects where additional
costs may be incurred at a later date. The reserve is held to meet that expenditure.
The Economic Development Reserve is established to help fund the provision of
Economic Development grants in future periods. The Police Contribution reserve
represent specific funding which the Council has earmarked to share with the Police
on a study into the impact of participatory budgeting. The Flooding Works Reserve
is to help finance flooding capital projects which may arise in the future. Finally, the
Page 89

Meet and Greet reserve is the remaining funding available to fund the Coach Meet
and Greet Service provided by the Tourist Information Centre.
12.8

There are no proposed movements on any other reserves and they remain
available for future years. The Environmental Reserve relates to the housing stock
transfer and is to cover potential future liabilities arising from that arrangement.

13.0

Savings

13.1

Appendix 1 shows that £590k of savings have been successfully implemented in
2016/17. These include savings related to the Amey contract, increased income at
the Crematorium and an adjustment to the Minimum Revenue Provision.

13.2

Savings not achieved in 2016/17 will be added to the 2017/18 savings target.
These total £483k and are detailed in the following paragraphs.

13.3

A further £241k of savings are required from the Amey Contract. It is hoped that
increases in the volume of material collected along with a general upturn in
Commodity prices received will produce the majority, if not all, of that saving.
Additional options to explore savings continue to be explored and a number of
proposals are being considered.

13.4

The Museums and Guildhall are part of the combined Cultural and Trading Service
for 2017/18. Those savings which have been carried forward into 2017/18 will form
part of the financial planning for this new service.

14.0

Capital Programme

14.1

The outturn position for the Capital Programme is £7.821m against the budget for
the year of £15.532m. Expenditure for 2016/17 has included £2.374m on the Kings
Quarter Development as work starts on the Infrastructure and Highways elements
of the Transport Hub project and the upgrades to Eastgate car park roof (£0.714m)
ensuring the asset remains operational in accordance with the Councils contractual
duty. 2016/17 saw the Council purchase 14 recycling vehicles and new sorting
equipment totalling £2.655m facilitating the Councils new kerb side recycling
programme, increasing the types of recycling the Council is able to collect.

14.2

The nature of capital projects means that many of them span a number of financial
years, budgets are set per project any unspent budgets at the end of any one
financial year may be carried forward into the next

14.3

A summarised table for the Capital Programme is shown as Appendix 2.

15.0

Prompt payment performance

15.1

The Council aims to make payments to all suppliers promptly and in accordance
with contract terms. The performance on invoice payments during the year is
summarised in a table below Overall, 93% of invoices received in the year were
paid within 30 days of receipt.

Page 90

Paid within 5 days
Paid within 10 days
Paid within 30 days
Paid over 30 days

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
TOTAL
1,479 67% 1,131 56% 1,377 61% 1,342 65% 5,329 62%
1,797 82% 1,555 77% 1,764 79% 1,643 79% 6,759 79%
2,063 94% 1,924 95% 2,058 92% 1,907 92% 7,952 93%
133

Total Invoices paid
Average Days to Pay

6%

104

5%

186

8%

163

8%

586

2,196

2,028

2,244

2,070

8,538

8

9

11

9

9

7%

16.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

16.1

There are no ABCD implications as a result of this report.

17.0

Alternative Options Considered

17.1

When consider how to reduce budgetary pressure or make savings officers explore
a wide range of options.

18.0

Reasons for Recommendations

18.1

It is a good practice for members to be regularly informed of the current financial
position of the Council. This report is intended to make members any of any
significant issues in relation to financial standing and any actions that officers are
taking in response to identified variances.

19.0

Future Work and Conclusions

19.1

Work will continue to reach savings targets or limit in year budget pressures. A
further financial monitoring report will be produced for members at the end of the
second quarter.

20.0

Financial Implications

20.1

All financial implications are contained within the report which is of a wholly financial
nature.

21.0

Legal Implications

21.1

There are no legal implications from this report
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

Page 91

22.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
22.1

There are no specific risks or opportunities as a result of this report

23.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

23.1

A PIA screening assessment has been undertaken and the impact is neutral. A full
PIA is not required.

24.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

24.1

None
Sustainability

24.2

None
Staffing & Trade Union

24.3

None

Page 92

Savings Position 2016/17
Prior Year Savings

Service

Details: aim of the project

Target

Removed in Transferred
Achieved Money Plan to 2017/18

£000

£000

£000

£000

Comments

Shopmobility

(50)

0

(50)

0

Saving removed

Public Protection

Market Service

(50)

0

(50)

0

Saving removed

Neighbourhood Services

Amey contract review, ongoing project from 2013/14
with requirement to identify further savings

(232)

(191)

0

(41)

Development Services

Planning Services Review

(40)

0

0

(40)

Cultural Services

Guildhall Operational review

(62)

(7)

0

(55)

Cultural Services

Museums Operational Review

(132)

0

0

(132)

(566)

(198)

(100)

(268)

Page 93

Public Protection

Total

Status

J
J

New recycling service introduced. A full year in
operation in 2017/18 will determine final saving
achieved.
Further options to deliver savings to be
considered in 17/18. Money Plan to be adjusted
where necessary.
New Programming and Marketing team to
consider a wider range of income generation
Financial performance of the Museums was
improved in 2016/17 but savings targets were not
achieved

K
L
K
L

Savings Target 2016/17

Service
Cemeteries and
Crematorium
Neighbourhood Services
Public Protection
Neighbourhood Services

Details: aim of the project
Building additional income achieved into the
base budget and review of crematorium
charging structure
Roundabout advertising and advertising on
signs
Stray Dog service being managed through
Worcestershire Regulatory Services
Amey contract review, on-going project from
2013/14 with requirement to identify further
savings

Target
£000

Removed in Transferred
Achieved Money Plan to 2017/18
£000
£000
£000

Comments

(100)

(100)

0

0

Income was above target and the additional
surplus helped reduce other Council pressures in
year

(18)

(18)

0

0

Income was on target for the year

(12)

(12)

0

0

New service model delivered the expected
savings

J
J

(200)

0

0

(200)

Waste and recycling review complete but no
saving is expected in 2016/17

L

J

Service

Details: aim of the project

Target

Removed in Transferred
Achieved Money Plan to 2017/18

£000

£000

£000

£000

Comments

Status

J
J
J

Charging for inspection of abandoned vehicles

(3)

(3)

0

0

Delivered in line with income target

Environmental Protection

Shared working on contaminated land

(5)

(5)

0

0

Vacancies meant the team delivered the saving
in year.

Asset Management

Restructure of service

(5)

(5)

0

0

Saving has been achieved

Human Resources

Shared Service for Human Resources service
with Gloucestershire County Council

(54)

(54)

0

0

Service is in place and saving has been
delivered

J

Contact Centre /Planning

Introduction of charges for street naming and
numbering

(30)

(18)

0

(12)

Some income was received. It is hoped that
income will be in line with target in 2017/18

Financial Services

Adjustment of Minimum Revenue Provision

(100)

(100)

0

0

Achieved in 2016/17

Various

Efficiencies against current budgets

(75)

(75)

0

0

All minor budget changes have been achieved

Customer Services

Council Advertising Network

(5)

(2)

0

(3)

K
J
J
K

Total

(607)

(392)

0

(215)

Savings Brought Forward

(566)

(198)

(100)

(268)

(1,173)

(590)

(100)

(483)

Page 94

Environmental Protection

Total

Some income received but not in line with target

Capital Programme 2016/17

Appendix 2

Scheme

Revised budget
2016/17

Kings Quarter Development
Kings Quarter Masterplanning
City Centre Investment Fund
HCA Regeneration Grant money
GCC Building Improvements
Voltage Optimisation - Main Buildings
ICT Projects
Eastgate Rooftop Carpark Improvements
Housing projects
Drainage and Flood Protection Works
Townscape Heritage Initiative - HLF
Ranger Centre Barns/Storage
Horsbere Brook Local Nature Reserve works
Play Area Improvement Programme
Crematorium Cremator Impovements
Grant Funded Projects
Elmbridge Open Space Improvements
Robinswood All Paths Project
GL1 Emergency Works
City Centre CCTV System
Retaining Wall Works
75-81 Eastgate Street
Innsworth Lane Sports Pitches
Green Waste Vehicles
Crematorium Vehicles
Guildhall Sound Desks
TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Page 95

7,144,630
0
1,243,530
79,270
307,665
45,175
420,915
713,905
816,330
592,290
1,081,600
67,360
92,345
87,725
45,220
51,110
16,000
111,750
49,205
73,550
47,000
48,350
5,037
2,356,900
35,562
496
15,532,920

Outturn
2,375,029
25,005
634,817
900
186,746
0
200,215
713,441
307,954
98,798
266,574
0
7,550
86,036
34,058
37,228
14,010
42,722
2,713
42,341
0
48,350
5,207
2,655,402
35,560
496
7,821,152

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16

Date:

21st June 2017

Meeting:

Cabinet

Subject:

Accommodation Review

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jonathan Lund, Corporate Director

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jonathan.lund@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No
Tel: 396276

1. None

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To outline options to meet the future accommodation needs of the City Council and
to recommend the start of negotiations with Gloucestershire County Council to
relocate the organisation to Shire Hall to facilitate the potential disposal for the
Herbert, Kimberly and Philpott (HKP)Warehouses.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)
(5)

3.0

The relocation of the City Council from its existing office accommodation in
the Herbert, Kimberly and Philpott Warehouses, Gloucester Docks be
supported;
The Corporate Director be authorised to commence formal discussions with
the County Council to agree terms for the City Council to occupy available
accommodation in Shire Hall;
Potential partial location into City Council owned premises at Westgate Street
also be supported;
The top floor of North Warehouse be retained for Civic and Meetings
purposes;
It be noted that further reports on the potential disposal of the vacated HKP
Warehouses will follow in due course.

Background and Key Issues
North, Herbert, Kimberly & Phillpotts Warehouses (N-HKP)

3.1

Gloucester City Council moved its administrative offices to Gloucester Docks in
1987 as part of a process to kick-start the regeneration of the docks area. The
Council originally occupied:
Page 97

North Warehouse (N) - Freehold – c1800sqm – Part leased to Regus to 7/03/2023
Herbert (H) – Leased to 2188 – c2150sqm
Kimberly (K) – Leased to 2188 – c1380sqm
Phillpotts (P) – Leased to 2186 – c1320sqm
3.2

One aspect of the Together Gloucester design principles was to engineer a future
staffing structure which, with downsizing, home/mobile and flexible working was
able to be accommodated within one of the three docks warehouses.

3.2

The new structures facilitate this potential change and further work has now been
undertaken to quantify the infrastructure works necessary to enable the Council to
function safely and efficiently in one building.

3.3

If the Council was to remain in one of the three HKP Warehouses the most
appropriate would be Herbert, which offers ground floor access and basement
storage. An options report produced in January 2016 suggested that the separation
and refurbishment costs prior to letting the vacant K and P Warehouses would be
c£650,000 and the two might yield an income of £100,000pa (payback with void
periods c 9 years). Further recent work has identified the need to relocate electrical
and mechanical equipment and ICT infrastructure into Herbert Warehouse if the
Council was to remain located there.

3.4

The closure and mothballing of K and P might cost c£200,000 and yield savings in
running costs of c£135,000pa

3.5

From time to time the Council receives expressions of interest from third parties in
relation to redeveloping the vacated warehouses in ways which would support the
Council’s economic, regeneration and visitor economy strategies and potentially
generate either capital or revenue income.
Alternative Accommodation Options

3.6

In order to try to mitigate the costs of relocating to a single warehouse, maximise
either capital receipts, revenue income or both and support further economic and
social regeneration the Council has explored a number of alternative
accommodation options, these include

3.6.1 Vacate HKP and relocate to North Warehouse, where the Council holds the freehold
and where the Civic Suite is currently located. This was discounted on the basis
that breaking the existing Regus lease would be problematic and potentially costly
and would not serve the economic and business support objectives of the Council.
Allowing the lease to come to the end of its term would mean the Council treading
water in HKP for 5/6 year.
3.6.2 Relocate to Kings House. This option would require a scheme to design and
refurbish a City Council owned property at Kings House. This option was
discounted on the basis that there would be significant refurbishment and running
costs and it would limit future options for the potential redevelopment of that site.
Redevelopment timescales would also prevent an early exit from HKP.
3.6.3 Relocate to new build on Gloucestershire County Council estate. This would
require a negotiation to occupy new build accommodation on the site currently
Page 98

occupied by Quayside House or elsewhere at Blackfriars in partnership with County.
This option was discounted on the basis that there would be significant development
risk and uncertainty associated with a potentially complex design, planning and
building project and timescales would prevent an early exit from HKP
3.6.4 Gloucester Language Immersion Centre (GLIC). This County Council owned
building has struggled to find a sustainable use since the closure of the language
immersion centre. The potential to use the building as a location for the City
Council has been explored with the County Council but discounted because the
obligations arising from the grant funding which supported its construction mean
that an alternative use by the City Council would be expensive. The County Council
has plans to maintain a use for the building which is compliant with the original
funding grant.
3.6.5 Relocate to existing and vacant office accommodation in Gloucester. The Council
owns, leases or could acquire an interest in existing office accommodation to meet
its needs. This option is not ideal because the likelihood is that space of sufficient
size to accommodate the whole organisation is unlikely to become available at a
time and within a budget to make it tenable. However, the Council owns property at
Westgate Street, close to Shire Hall, which could be vacant in Spring 2018. The
property would require some refurbishment to make it suitable, but it could offer a
visible city centre location for the Council’s Place Team (City Growth and Delivery
and City Improvement and Environment Teams) and allow an early partial decant
from HKP.
3.6.6 Relocate with Gloucestershire County Council. Sufficient space is likely to be
available from early 2018, pepper-potted around the Shire Hall estate. The County
Council is supportive of this proposal and is open to a negotiation in respect of
costs. Relocation to Shire Hall would overcome a number of logistical and
infrastructure issues and remove the need for many of the ICT projects that would
be necessary in other locations. It would facilitate an early departure from HKP and
could allow the release of the top floor of North Warehouse in time if we chose to
share meeting and Council Chamber facilities at Shire Hall.
3.6.7 Relocate to new build on Kings Quarter site. This option would require the Council
to promote and develop new build accommodation at Kings Quarter. The benefits
of this option would be purpose built flexible-use accommodation, potentially
providing a wider public service hub and acting as an anchor/pioneer development
in the regeneration of Kings Quarter. A number of partner agencies have expressed
early willingness to be involved in discussions about the potential for a hub in this
location. However, such a proposal comes with development risk and requires a
longer timescale which would delay an early departure from HKP.
Interest in HKP Warehouses
3.7

There are a number of parties interested in alternative uses for the HKP
warehouses.

3.8

Given the existing commercial interest and the potential for other interest, this report
is not seeking decisions on disposal or future uses of the HKP warehouses at this
time. Those matters will be the subject of further reports at a later date. It is merely

Page 99

necessary that Councillors are aware of the potential advantages of an early decant
from HKP
4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

This report seeks authorisation to enter discussion and negotiation with the County
Council on utilising existing “public estate” office accommodation/spare capacity for
City Council use.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

See paragraphs 3.6.1 to 3.6.7 above

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

There are a number of significant factors against remaining in one or all of the
existing docks warehouses. These include running, maintenance and repair costs
and the costs of downsizing and relocating infrastructure to one warehouse. There
are also substantial opportunity costs arising from the potential to generate a capital
receipt or revenue stream, the potential to avoid major infrastructure costs and the
potential to promote an alternative use of the HKP site which supports the Council’s
strategic objectives

6.2.

There are also a number of options for the future. Short term relocation to Shire
Hall would avoid HKP related infrastructure costs and allow the City Council to use
available county council office space, ICT infrastructure and other facilities
management services that would come with serviced Shire Hall accommodation.
Shared use of Shire Hall meeting rooms and Council Chamber might also allow the
Council to negotiate the release of the top floor of North Warehouse to Regus if it
wished. Alternatively, retention of the top floor of North Warehouse for civic and
meetings purposes would allow the Council to retain a Civic identity which is distinct
from the County Council.

6.3

The City Council could choose to couple this option with occupation of the property
in Westgate Street, to provide a visible and symbolic presence in the City Centre for
the Place group of services.
Alternatively it could be considered that
accommodation in Shire Hall would be sufficiently city centre based and would
avoid the risk of a return to siloed working that Together Gloucester has been
designed to remove.

6.4

Finally, relocation out of HKP and into available accommodation in 2018 would also
allow the Council the time to consider whether to promote the regeneration of the
Kings Quarter though investment in a new civic centre or public service hub in the
longer term.

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

Cabinet is asked to consider endorsing an early relocation of the City Council out of
the HKP warehouses during 2018 and to negotiate with Gloucester County Council
to relocate into suitable available Shire Hall accommodation.

Page 100

7.2

Cabinet is also asked to agree to prioritise the relocation into Shire Hall and to
consider Westgate Street as an alternative only if the whole organisation cannot be
relocated with the County.

7.3

Cabinet is also asked to indicate if it wishes to retain the top floor of North
Warehouse for Civic and Meetings purposes.

7.4

Subject to decisions in respect of the points raised above the next steps will be to
negotiate with the County Council suitable terms for the relocation and the
preparation of a detailed decant and relocation plan which will include significant
de-cluttering, storage and archival management and an ICT plan.

7.5

Further report on options for the disposal of the vacated HKP warehouses will
follow.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

At this stage detailed financial implications are difficult to assess. Previous
estimates indicate that a full disposal of HKP would avoid either separation and
refurbishment costs of c £650,000 or mothballing costs of around £200,000 and
could yield a significant capital receipt, revenue income or both. However, until a
compliant disposal process is completed the exact figure is unknown and this will all
be subject to further reports.

8.2

The likely costs of relocating within Shire Hall are also subject to the conclusion of
successful negotiations with the County Council. It is anticipated that the cost will
be based upon a per desk charge for “serviced” accommodation and ancillary
facilities – meeting rooms, welfare and refreshment space, ICT networking etc.

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

The occupation by the City Council of space within the Shire Hall will need be
documented. The negotiations will recognise that this accommodation will be the
principal or main City Council offices.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

Subject to the outcome of the discussions the proposal may offer opportunities to
further integrate the multi-agency community safety work of the City and County
Council’s and the Police.

Page 101

Sustainability
12.2

Subject to the outcome of the discussions the proposal is likely to be sustainable
and cost effective.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

Staff have been briefed on the proposals. The shift to Shire Hall would be a minor
relocation in terms of the change of work location.

Background Documents:

None

Page 102

